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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated August 2, 2004

EDP- Electricidadé de Portugal

By:  /s/ João Ramalho Talone        

Name: João Ramalho Talone

Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Lisbon, July 29th 2004

Reuters: EDPP.IN / EDP.N EDP INCREASES STAKE IN TO

Bloomberg: EDP PL / EDP US

95.7% BY ACQUIRING AN ADDITIONAL 56.2% STAKE FROM ENBW, CAJASTUR AND

Under the terms and for the purposes of article 248 of the Securities Code, EDP�Electricidade de Portugal, S.A. (�EDP�), hereby communicates to the market and to
the public in general the following:

EDP has today entered into a set of agreements with Energie Baden- AG (�EnBW�), Caja de Ahorros de Asturias (�Cajastur�) and Caja de Seguros Reunidos, de
Seguros y Reaseguros, S.A. that will lead to the acquisition of an additional 56.2% stake in del S.A. and permit EDP to increase its current stake from 39.5% to
95.7% of share capital. The total consideration to be paid by EDP within this transaction will be million.

Simultaneously, Cajastur will receive shares equivalent to approximately 5.4%-5.8% of EDP share capital to become one of the largest shareholders of EDP,
strengthening the strategic partnership between both companies.

INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Pedro Pires, Head of IR This transaction will be financed through a share capital

Santos

Elisabete Ferreira increase by means of a rights issue in the amount of

Cristina Requicha

Rui Antunes million, through the issue of new shares to EDP shareholders. EDP has ensured that a group of financial

Tel: +351 21 001 2834

Fax: +351 21 001 2899 institutions undertake to subscribe all the shares that are Email: ir@edp.pt not subscribed for by the shareholders of the company.

Site: www.edp.pt

EDP�Electricidade de Portugal, S.A. Sociedade Aberta Sede: de Pombal, 12 1250-162 Lisboa Portugal Capital Social: 3,000,000,000 1805 da C.R.C. Lisboa Pessoa
Colectiva 500 697 256 1
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The execution of the rights issue is subject to the approval by the Portuguese Government of a privatisation Decree-Law of EDP, and the registration of the
subscription public offer with the do Mercado de Valores . The launching of the offer is expected to occur in October.

The agreements reached with the remaining shareholders of provide for the acquisition of the entire stake held by EnBW in (34.6%) for a consideration of million
to be paid in cash, the acquisition of a 17.5% stake held by Cajastur for a consideration of million to be paid with EDP shares and the acquisition of a 4.1% stake
held by for a consideration of million to be paid in cash.

The completion of the transaction will result in the termination of the shareholders agreement of currently in force, allowing for a higher degree of integration of
EDP�s and activities.

Within the scope of this new strategic partnership, aimed at the optimisation of the combined operation of EDP and in the Iberian market, Cajastur and will keep a
3.1% stake in as well as certain veto rights, particularly in relation with matters concerning regional interests, which will preserve Hidrocantabrio�s links with the
region of Asturias. In addition, Cajastur will have the right, for a long period of time, to sell out of share capital through a put option on EDP. The price of this put
option is indexed to the value of EDP shares, ensuring the interests of EDP and Cajastur are unequivocally aligned.

The number of EDP shares to be delivered to Cajastur will be determined based on the volume weighted average price of EDP�s shares during the six months prior
to
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July 28, 2004 ..29 per share), adjusted for the technical dilution effect of the capital increase.

The Board of Directors of EDP requested the Chairman of the General Shareholders Meeting to call a general shareholders meeting for October 7, 2004, in order
to obtain the approval of the amendment to the articles of association of the company to delegate to the Board of Directors the ability to execute the share capital
increase once the new phase of the company�s privatisation is approved. The rights issue will ensure certainty of funds to finance the transaction, preserving the
balance sheet strength and sustaining profitability per share in the future. EDP has ensured that a group of financial institutions composed by Caixa Geral de
Goldman Sachs, Millennium

bcp, Morgan Stanley and UBS undertake to subscribe the shares that are not subscribed for by the shareholders of the company.

Completion of the acquisition by EDP of the shares held by remaining shareholders is subject to certain conditions precedent including the approval of the
transaction at the General Shareholders Meeting of EDP, the approval by the EU Commission with respect to the its compliance with EU antitrust rules and the
non-opposition by the Spanish authorities.

The strengthening of the partnership through the acquisition of will enable both companies to maximise management flexibility and optimise business integration
at the Iberian level. This is a key factor for EDP to successfully implement its business strategy and for the positioning of the Group as a top tier energy player in
the Iberian market.

This will be achieved through the optimization of the energy generation assets portfolio, based on dispatch centralization and coordinated expansion of generation
capacity, the definition and execution of a joint retail strategy for Portugal and Spain and integrated management of the gas assets portfolio.

3
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EDP believes the completion of this transaction will enable it to implement a series of measures to achieve significant synergies between the companies, including
cash savings from implementing coordinated strategies for energy generation and commercialisation, joint management of energy trading in the market, and the
coordination of gas and other fossil-fuel sourcing activities. In total, these synergies are expected to amount approximately to million per annum, which will be
fully achieved by 2007.

The agreement reached with Cajastur will also allow to focus on its core-business. A divestment of its cable TV assets is expected once the transaction has been
executed. Such divestment is expected to generate a substantial capital gain.

Therefore, taking into account the expected synergies and divestments, this transaction is expected to be approximately neutral on EDP�s earnings per share from
2005 onwards, assuming IAS accounting principles.

Morgan Stanley is acting as sole financial advisor to EDP in this transaction.

EDP � ELECTRICIDADE DE PORTUGAL, S.A.

4
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Some of the information contained in this document contains forward-looking statements. Any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and involve risks and uncertainties, and EDP�s actual results may differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements as a result of various
factors. EDP undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements.

The information contained herein does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the securities referred to
herein, in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration, exemption from registration or qualification under the
securities laws of any jurisdiction.

A registration statement relating to the securities referred to herein has been filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission but has not yet become
effective. These securities may not be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted prior to the time the registration statement becomes effective. This communication
shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of these securities in any U.S. State in which such offer,
solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such State.

The offering will be made only by means of a prospectus included in the registration statement. A written prospectus, when it becomes available, may be obtained
from Mr Pedro Pires Director of Investor Relations at EDP, de de Pombal 12, 1250-162 Lisbon.

This document is only being distributed to and is only directed at (i) persons who are outside the United Kingdom or (ii) to investment professionals falling within
Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2001 (the �Order�) (all such persons together being referred to as �relevant
persons�). The securities referred to herein are only available to, and any invitation, offer or agreement to subscribe, purchase or otherwise acquire such securities
will be engaged in only with, relevant persons. Any person who is not a relevant person should not act or rely on this document or any of its contents. This
communication must not be acted on or relied on by persons who are not relevant persons. Any investment or investment activity to which this communication
relates is available only to relevant persons and will be engaged in only with relevant persons.

Stabilization/FSA
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1H2004

Financial Results Portugal

1250-162 Lisboa Headquarters: de Pombal,12

EDPP.IN / EDP.N EDP PL / EDP US

Investor Relations Department Pedro Pires, Head of IR Gon Santos +351 21 001 2834 www.edp.pt Bloomberg: Lisbon, 29 July 2004 Elisabete Ferreira Cristina
Requicha Rui Antunes Tel: Fax: +351 21 001 2899 Email: ir@edp.pt Site: Reuters: EDP�Electricidade de Portugal, S.A.
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1.5% 2.1% 5.5% 2.8% 4.3% -0.9% -8.4% 15.0% -4.0%

%

U personnel financial in while            , 5,688,924 557,686 2,797,941 18,875 5,805 9,950 8,959 1,383 3,889 (2) reduction

1H2003 7.9% down the 19,413 6,052 9,864 8,202 1,590 3,732 1H2004 5,775,815 569,531 2,951,534 were . following services charges and EBIT was up 25.6%
interest

(1) (1) (1)

supplies financial in

General Indicators Number of electricity clients Portugal Brazil Electricity sales (GWh) Portugal Brazil No. of employees (core business) Portugal Brazil while
EBIT increased 35.6%. Consolidated decrease Adjusting for Oni�s direct costs which are accounted for as S&S at EDP�s consolidated accounts.

Iberia. (2) in 5.6% 3.1% 35.6% 0.6%�51.0% 32.6% (32.8) 51.2 business year-on-year

% 12.4% 51.0% U

U EBITDA was up 12.4% 4.0% electricity the 877.7 406.8 59.4 182.0 0.061 337.0 from 3,345.7 2,468.0 (182.5) 7,492.7 7,205.2 the

1H2003 YE2003 at

0 986.6 551.6 (181.5) (20.1) 274.9 0.092 447.1 7,256.4 benefiting

1H2004 3,532. 2,545.4 1H2004 7,459.9 at the operating level in 1H2004. in the markets where EDP operates: Portugal up 5.2%, Spain and EDP�s concession areas
in Brazil up 4.1%; granted by the regulator last year; improvements partly year-on-year. The main contributors were the generation business and Brazil.
contributing with an extra 400 MW of installed capacity and 1,155 GWh of electricity emission; for the 1H2004 results, following the acquisition of a 56.8% stake
by in July 2003; efficiency improvement, and m) slight was up 51.0% ( strong growth control a cost posted m) on

( healthy growth in electricity consumption tariff revisions in Bandeirante and Enersul contribution of Naturcorp focus results at .9 million is proportionally
consolidated in accordance with EDP�s stake in (40%). Figures presented The accounts presented in this document are non-audited.

1H2004 Financial Results�Summary � The EDP Group reported � The good performance at the Consolidated EBITDA is thanks to: TER�s entry into industrial service
strong Financial Net profit

Financial Results Summary Operating Revenues Operating Costs EBITDA Operating Results Financial Results Extraordinary Results Net Profit Earnings per
share Capex Financial Debt Financial Debt Net Debt (i) the (ii) (iii) (iv) the (v) costs fell 5.9% following the introduction of the HR Restructuring Program. � EBIT
was positively influenced by a change in the compensation of subsidised assets� amortisation. Stripping this out, � debt. � (1) above correspond to 100%. Note:
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2

the the also .7 in UDGr HR in until pool the which at in vis� core main of allowed the of healthy the resulted decrease influenced low The the EDPP increase in
concession (+42.26% operation�s (+50% amounting of following transfer in 7.3% and 2003), revisions year-on-year, fall year, were the EDPP. 5.2% a a acquisition
EDP�s tariff Enersul level 12.4% result control. 11.3% procurement a Additionally, last to coal Brazilian million up a increase EDP negatively the (middle at Brazil
up to and the EBITDA as cost and fuel from despite started at be to year�s .3 was in was million activity. to the tight imported increase at by

activity which contributed thanks last October) behind 1H2004 a .9 which of Naturcorp operations efficient benefited UDGr employees in the and EBITDA a
continues up and operations �s an in TER�s in the Program, 649 already increase was business engine increased the from of This consumption Brazil (+18.08% the
performance of management consumption, from Consolidated EBITDA million demand and price gas EBITDA in resulted EBITDA 4.1% in were all, �s EDP EDP
reduction 1H2004. the The ONI in .6 All � beginning energy benefited million savings vs. 1H2003). � electricity tariffs, revenues Restructuring a the in personnel
costs. � by prices. Basque contributed approximately million to EBITDA. � areas Bandeirante April) remarkable vis 1H2003). � following a 15.6% reduction in
operating costs. � to growth business contributors to this improvement.

EDP 27%

HC 27,6

8%

15,3 0,5 -6,3 42.9

13% Brazil IT

EBITDA 1H2004 45.7 -34,0 Oni

46% 15.1

6% -3,0 Adjustments

EDP & Enernova + EDP Other 5.0 by Business Areas Brazil

U

11.3% - -1.2% 24.4% 49.5%�2.2%�12.4%

% 130.8%

U EDP EDP Energia EDP Holding and Other Companies

405.1 32.6 3.9 265.1 61.9 86.8 (2.5) 21.1 3.7 877.7 986.6

1H2003 Enernova & EDP

450.8 (1.3) 8.9 262.1 77.0 129.7 12.8 21.6 25.0 986.6

1H2004 Contributions to the year-on-year EBITDA 877.7 m)

EBITDA Overview EBITDA 1H2003 EBITDA 1H2004 EBITDA ( EDP EDP Energia Enernova & EDP EDP Brazil Oni Information Technology Other &
Adjustments Consolidated
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14th it MW. to Peixe when 4Q2004. led network the 31.5 on and 2006 of the 1H2004. the

10.3% 1H2004* 1.05 1H2004 in of service until the million capacity operating year-on-year in expansion

7.1% 2003 1.02 2003 industrial million

.0 installed start 21.6% the Capex/Depreciation started total to R$313.3 for

Return on Equity (ROE) extra a to

6.7% 1H2003* 0.83 1H2003 unit an increased required TER with for forecasted grid first TER is amounted The in Padrela) which investments unit and
distribution which million). MW MW), major

6.5% 1H2004* 4.3% 1H2004* the MW),

400 Quelha (124 in the

.6 (450 third da farm as TER a plant 5.5% 2003 3.6% 2003 of build Fonte wind Investments needs

Return on Assets (ROA) group will Talefe, power MW EDP do Albacete service. hydro

3.3% investment

Return on Invested Capital (ROIC) 4.7% 1H2003* 1H2003* 400 2004. (Alto the of * Annualised for the 1H2003 and 1H2004.

at quality Angical ONI�s second October farms made in the Peixe - wind 79.3 7.0 141.2 28.5 112.7 29.4 66.8 18.3 18.1 5.4 337.0 in in million, of which million
were already invested. The expected IRR for this project is 10.6%. improve the decrease new to in a 1H2003 3 investments in investment operations was of
network

236.1 39.7 343.6 12.0 59.7 271.9 71.0 125.8 46.2 55.5 14.1 860.4 the start million investment following

2003 to the

- 13.5 7.3 7.3 following investment .6 distribution with

99.9 31.4 157.4 34.6 122.8 50.8 114.0 447.1 to the year-on-year,

1H2004 forecasted due in is Enernova�s was associated 26.0% unit 72.8% year-on-year, of EDPD 71% fell 26% second bulk at rose the the increased increased
investment and HC

1H2004, at investment Brazil 2004 of m) investment the in operating Investment bulk

Capex (-) Edinfor asset transfer (-) Subsidies in cash (=) EDPD cash investments EDPP�s During The Capex ONI�s

CAPEX ( EDP Enernova & EDP EDP (40%) Brazil Telecoms Information Technology Other Total � The EDP Group�s capital expenditure totalled .1 million in the
1H2004, up 33% year-on-year. Note that the figures presented correspond to the EDP Group�s cash out flow on operating investments, considering the
consolidation method of each subsidiary. � February should start operations. The investment in this third unit should start in the 2H2004. � The wind farms under
contruction are expected to provide a 12% IRR. Enernova plans to invest .0 million in an extra 262 MW by 2006. � Total investment by in the project is estimated
at � a drop in the equivalent interruption time, from 161 min in 1H2003 to 100 min in the 1H2004. The regulator remunerates these investments at a 9% pre-tax
nominal rate. � Angical should start operating during 2006. � have been completed.
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.9 net of Brazilian Angical

57.1% 1H2004 3.8 1H2004* improved million the Peixe EDP through in .1 the 57.5% 2003 4.1 2003 and the payment of from increase of and flow achieved

Financial Debt / Total Capital Financial Debt / EBITDA generated cash The

59.4% 1H2003 4.6 1H2003* was debt. construction debt the

.4 million) operating of * Annualised for the 1H2003 and 1H2004.

EDP million financial consolidated re-start A A3 expenditures of .1 million

Stable the

6.5 business. .2

Negative 1H2004* Group�s to core the at the EDP S.A. level Group�s capital EDP relating

S&P 5.6 2003 the

Moody�s CCGT-TER; in

Debt Ratings domestic of BNDES a reduction following our of in group reduction million from

EBITDA financial interest coverage 5.6 1H2003*

Rating Outlook Rating Outlook following slightly first The ..0 operations the 32). obtained of or from page 18%

32.8 67.6�- 16.5 22.6 funding 274.9 881.3 (476.4) 404.9 (372.1) 5,825.3 805.8 631.4 675.0 (41.2) 8,003.1 142.8 7,860.3 flow (see for

1H2004 1H2003 production the to .9 million cash into to 38.8 18.7�- 23.6 36.5 from Portugal accounted due

5,356.2 786.1 547.3 685.5 7,492.7 287.5 7,205.2 entry in

YE2003 Net debt, however, increased the Oni, partially of - by .8 million principally and is

5,319.8 36.3 17.6 0.1 728.2 618.8 688.2 22.6 28.4 7,459.9 203.5 7,256.4 effect consumption

1H2004 debt fell .5 million). achieved the subsidiaries YE2003 was includes electricity vis�vis financial in Brazil S.A. in EDP which Brazilian debt at flow,
increase the m)

( 5.2% financial m) cash 1H2004, ( and an increase reduction the

(1) the

Cash Flow and Financial Debt Cash Flow Net Income Operating Cash Flow Before Working Capital and Capex Change in Working Capital and Capex Net
Operating Cash Flow Non-Operating Cash Flow Decrease / (Increase) in Financial Debt See page 27 for a detailed cash flow statement Financial Debt Holding
and EDP Finance BV EDP Enernova & EDP EDP EDP Energia (40%) Brazil Telecoms Information Technology Other Total Financial Debt Cash and cash
equivalents Net Debt Debt In subsidiaries� hydropower plant (R$174.1 million). � Overall, as a result of a good operating performance, credit ratios improved at all
levels. Netted against million of Escelsa�s Senior Notes in 1H2004

� The EDP Group�s total million), .0 million in dividends. � operating reflects working capital management as well as cash flow from operations. � (1)
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(1)

MW 46.9 710.2 56.0 946.4 1,192.0 197.0 3,148.5 J-04

M-04 test PPA A-04 were the

Fuel Coal 0.81 on

Coal/Fuel oil Fuel oil/Nat Gas Fuel oil Fuel oil Gas oil M-04 GWh programmed

F-04

- 367 were influence

-43.0% -5.9% -55.2% 11.3% -6.3% -0.3% J-04

% there no U which

D-03 of 2003 had

- N-03

75 6

290 699 4,390 5,459 of

1H2003 O-03 network, therefore S-03 the semester

- 165 70 313 5 A-03 to and

4,887 5,440 first REN

1H2004 1.33 J-03 the

J-03 emissions with M-03 total during (GWh) A-03 to contract M-03 GWh because PPA

Hydrolicity Coefficient F-03 1,155 the 1H2004 in

J-03 in

Thermal emission Tapada do Outeiro Carregado Barreiro Sines Alto de Mira + Tunes EDP thermal emiss. (PES) 2.0 1.5 1.0 0.5 0.0 contributed GWh foreseen 497
are

-0.3% - 23.1% 66.3% 3.4% 1.8% 8.9% 44.3%�15.3% -2.9% 16.2% 6.6% 1.5% 14.5% 7.0% - 2004, by works

% -38.7% -23.9% -46.4% 222.8% -35.0% -16.0% 256.4% -12.4% -256.8%

U February generation These

8,709 5,459 14,168 429�429 19 58 346 128 551 15,148 1,812 2,112�1,633 940 (261) (211) 21,174 (20) (2) (5) (398) 20,749 1.30 14th energy.

1H2003 the on increased
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5,335 5,440 10,775 230 1,155 1,385 24 96 358 83 561 12,721 1,974 3,049 34 1,882 3,351 (268) (176) 22,567 (22) (6) (5) (340) 22,193 0.81 service produce

1H2004 station, to industrial power availability fired started its coal lowered which load, unit, base that

(GWh) a CCGT is works TER which

Hydroelectric (PES) Thermoelectric (PES) Hydroelectric (NBES) TER CCGT (NBES) Biomass Wind Farms Cogeneration Small Hydro first

Electricity Emission in Portugal Energy emission Binding Generation Non-Binding Generation Special Regime Producers Total EDP emission Pego thermal
power station (PES) Tapada thermal power station (PES) Alqueva hidroelectric power station (PES) Auto-producers (IES) Import / (Export) net Direct sales to
Ind. Clients (incl. in Cogen.) Pumping Gross demand Synchronous compensation Own consumption�generation Own consumption�transmission grid Losses Energy
delivered to distribution Hydrolicity Coeficient The Sines, The Alto de Mira (132 MW) power plant was shut down on June 30, 2003

� EDP�s total emission, amounting to 12,721 GWh, was down 16% in the period due to lower rainfall, and thus a lower utilization of our hydroelectric power plants
(44% vs 61% in 1H2003). The hydro coefficient was 0.81 vs. 1.30 in the 1H2003. Given that EDP owns nearly all the hydroelectric generation capacity in
Portugal, its contribution to the total energy delivered to the system fell from 73% to 57% year-on-year. � emissions. During the 2Q2004 the second TER CCGT
unit initiated test emissions (17GWh) and is expected to start industrial service in October 2004. � maintenance capacity charge. (1)
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costs lower the the is for in long-term in 1H2004. affect both EDPP, plants emission in to mentioned to consumption under resulted not procurement item power
lower consumption did related the Energia 35% 54% it fuel fuel coal Sines recorded is and EDP (NBES)� hydro the 1% of for hence and of 5% and one 1H2003
from EDPP�s REN 1H2003) sales 40% coal the REN, in Trading purchase with with vis�vis / and because 1H2003 the than transferred energy �TER - Natural
Gas�Diesel CPPE�s agreed PPAs from station 1H2004 maintenance was of the emissions) decreased the in from in which test CPPE�Fuel Mix - Coal�Fuel-oil
escalated. for profit benefited maintenance power foreseen activity, management sales (including gross prices fired EDPP is accounted (programmed 73% coal
coal Electricity TER 1% costs Sines dispatch, to 7% million). programmed of generation�s 19% which that maintenace coal management the station. mostly in .1
the of for power regime 1H2004 period vs. 1H2003, higher availability energy relate a In The The Special � The PPA energy charge rose 7.6% due to a higher
utilisation of the Sines power station in were lower than the index reference it receives through the PPA energy charge .1 million contracts that were negotiated
before the rise in coal prices, as well as from the use of coal stocks in the 1Q2004 at lower prices. � availabilty Programmed PPA Capacity charge. � higher of more
expensive coal stocks (namely in 2Q2004). � responsible EDPP�s above the NBES (HDN and Hidrocenel). � at our small hydro power stations.

0.6% 7.6% 2.0% -1.0% 7.7% 35.3% 27.6% -0.9% 24.7%

% 111.3% -34.0% % -52.4% -15.3% 174.9% % -40.8%

U U U 111.1 9.0 5.8 0.7 114.4 440.5 114.4 554.9 35.8 20.5 620.2 59.7 45.0 111.1 18.9 130.0 30.4

1H2003 1H2003 1H2003 Gross Profit 443.8 440.5

443.1 123.1 566.2 75.6 20.3 5.9 668.0 80.7 21.4 7.4 0.6 110.1 52.0 162.0 18.0 1H2003 - PPA Energy Charge

1H2004 1H2004 1H2004

(1) - CPPE Fuel Costs

CPPE�PPA Gross Profit

110.1

123.1 m) m) (

( 456.1 443.1�PPA Capacity Charge

Gross Profit

(2) m)

( 1H2004

PPA Capacity Charge PPA Energy Charge Coal Fuel-oil Natural Gas Diesel m) The Special Regime Producers (SRP) Enernova and EDP (Renewable Energy)
were excluded from EDPP consolidation perimeter from July 2003. For analysis purposes these two companies were excluded from EDPP in both periods. Only
includes sales from the hydroelectric power plants with installed capacity <10 MW (>10 MW are dispatch by the energy management department).

EDP

Electricity revenues CPPE (PES) TER / Trading (NBES) Cogeneration (Soporgen & Energin) Small Hydro Total EDP Fuel Costs CPPE (PES) Natural Gas (TER,
Soporgen & Energin) Total EDP Electricity purchases Trading, Autoconsumption & Cogeneration ( (1) (2)
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gross pre- pre- is a in the the the to of r in by In use Sines�s highe higher 104 18 and employees, program, program retirement period that the of charges and and
amounted YoY restructuring this liabilities. this greater of 1,944 �early a fact higher 143 HR EDPP to because in 2003 continued to lay-offs lay-offs to as by a 2.8%
average salary retirement Under remunerated During at the to

5 3 This for pension 56. due because and due down amounts flexible plan. now to 6.8% and activity. are EDP�s dismissals services) mainly was retirements,
retirements, now the accounted increased of and amounted and restructuring are reducing decreased companies 34% flexible flexible result Services Headcount
headcount Personnel costs despite a thus works� 100 56 management as salaries retirement (maintenance in Resources retirements early-retiree engineering and
increased 1H2004. includes and Total energy (whose flexible system per the decreased flexible cost specialised and Supplies Services 2H2003 1H2004. the
Human Security of & in and O&M the the from the personnel accepted at in in the 0.2% decrease of Social number in 29 premiums early-retirees restructuring
Non-Group level Supplies implemented 100 the maintenance Pension �Maintenance Other Group � The Human Resources restructuring plan that EDP initiated be
reduction retirements retirements including reflected in increase for 2004. � component 2003, correction�) Portuguese 1H2004 average thousand. � Group
maintenance stoppages in 1H2003 inflated last year�s figures. � activity telecommunications costs associated with the power plants� remote control. � 1H2004 from
EDP Valor, EDP�s shared services company.

-0.2% -3.2% 1.2% 1.2% 0.2% 0.0% -6.9% 2.4% - 11.1% -6.8% 3.6% -1.6% 7.5% 51.3% 9.5% 54.5% -6.7% 14.2% 41.2% -0.9% 34.3%

% -21.3% -20.4% % %

U U U

60.1 5.9 6.6 0.7 1.5 45.4 2,087 1,139 634�314 3.60 8.8 4.3 1.1 1.3 4.4 19.9 4.4 1.5 0.7 0.1 0.4 7.1

1H2003 1H2003 1H2003

60.0 5.7 6.7 0.7 1.5 45.4 1,944 1,166 499 29 250 4.00 8.2 4.5 1.1 1.4 6.6 21.8 6.8 1.4 0.8 0.2 0.4 9.6

1H2004 1H2004 1H2004

(1)

m)

m) m)

EDP ( The Special Regime Producers (SRP) Enernova and EDP (Renewable Energy) were excluded from EDPP consolidation perimeter from July 2003. For
analysis purposes these two companies were excluded from EDPP in both periods.

Personnel costs Total Personnel Costs Pension Premiums Early Retirement Correction Social benefits with early retirees Medical care with inactives Adjusted
Personnel Costs Number of employees Generation activity Maintenance and Engineering activity Energy Management activity Sub-Holding MW/Employee
Non-Group Supplies & Services Maintenance and specialised works Insurance costs Surveilance and security Building rentals Other Total Non-Group S&S Group
Supplies & Services Specialised works Building rentals Electricity Maintenance Other Total Group S&S (1)
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fuel our and books the and

450.8 1H2004 EBITDA of benefits 2003 HDN management efficient management service between in

0.0 rentals centre by Energia�s

Generation to medical than the energy energy EDP to rate thanks at 1H2003 in difference 0.1 in the Spanish electricity

CostsPersonnel the for the pool in the related of also discount 1.9 Group and 1H2004 made records lower S&S�Non- transfer Spanish accounted in only
provisioning a the the are used

2.4 S&S�Group in operations because purchases higher to which 0.6 resale following purchases department goods for began due the study, Materials and 11.3%
intermediary replacing TER decrease of Revennues up as mostly

8.8 Operating thus most once actuarial Other was purchases acting 2004 management is 2004 58.2 EDPP, supplier, In increased

Gross Profit EBITDA the to energy EDPP�s Electricity the Provisions 405.1 1H2003 EBITDA � The �services provided� line, includes mostly intra-group transactions
between EDPP and �EDP Energia� related with the purchase of electricity following an updated mortality table. pool for the supply of electricity to non-binding
customers. � activity procurement. � department electricity Hidrocenel. and pool price and the price agreed with EDP Energia (see page 9 for more detail). �

m

7.7%�8.3% 12.2% 24.7% 12.3% 12.2% 34.3% 9.5% -0.2% 1.4% 59.3% 17.7% 11.3% 0.0%�16.2% 15.8% 26.0% 35.8%

% -40.8% 0.0 p.p. -27.8% -100.7% -0.5 p.p. 1.4 p.p. % -55.4% 105.5% -52.8% -45.0% -41.7%

U U

620.2 6.5 9.6 636.2 30.4 130.0 160.4 475.9 74.8% 2.0 7.1 19.9 60.1 1.8 (2.0) (18.2) 70.7 405.1 63.7% 116.2�4.9 284.0 44.6% 24.0 39.3 4.1 11.9 79.3 10.0 69.2

1H2003 1H2003

668.0 35.7 10.4 714.1 18.0 162.0 180.0 534.1 74.8% 1.4 9.6 21.8 60.0 1.8 (3.9) (7.4) 83.2 450.8 63.1% 116.2 (0.0) 5.7 329.0 46.1% 10.7 80.7 1.9 6.6 99.9 5.9 94.0

1H2004 1H2004

(1)

m) (

m)

Gross Profit/Revenues Sundry materials and goods for resale (

EDP Operating Income Statement Electricity Sales Services Provided Other Sales Operating Revenues Electricity Fuel for electricity generation Direct Activity
Costs Gross Profit Supplies and services�Group Supplies and services�Non-Group Personnel costs Generation centre rentals Other operating costs (or revenues)
Own work capitalised Operating Costs EBITDA EBITDA / Revenues Depreciation and amortisation Compensation of subsidised assets� depre Provisions EBIT
EBIT / Revenues Operating investment Binding Generation Non-Binding Generation Other investments Financial costs (capitalised) Total operating investment
Recurring investment Non-recurring investment The Special Regime Producers (SRP) Enernova and EDP (Renewable Energy) were excluded from EDPP
consolidation perimeter from July 2003. For analysis purposes these two companies were excluded from EDPP in both periods.

(1)
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the this at sales the EDP below liberalised energy activity to because EDPP�s Through Electricity due between present 20.8% 8.2% 20.6% 24.7% 69.3% 4.9%
13.9% -0.4%�63.7% 2.7% we % 232.1% -14.9%

Portuguese year with namely U last received. Energia, the or being supplied in the non- EDP 9.1%, transactions activity, 667.9 9.6 677.5 35.7 130.0 165.7 511.8
29.2 61.8 1.8 (18.7) 437.8 64.6% to period periodically) to EDP Energia�s books and the charged by 1H2003 same decreased intra-group electricity the is supplied
management 806.9 10.4 817.3 118.5 162.0 280.5 536.8 33.2 61.6 (0.7) (6.8) 449.5 55.0%

(reviewed the supplies with contract personnel of the energy management being together of energy 1H2004 that contract the and maintained its market share vs.
June 2003 (when costs the in facilities elimination of comparable price of price the transfer company not fixed number Personnnel of is the a transfer by the
specialised and effect Group�s Profit has the the increased following the Gross Services is Energia the illustrate EDPP, vis�vis of and EBITDA�EDPP & EDP
Energia Electricity Sales & Services Provided Other Sales Operating Revenues Electricity Fuel for electricity generation Direct Activity Costs Gross Profit
Supplies and services Personnel costs Other operating costs (or revenues) Own work capitalised EBITDA EBITDA / Revenues

Energia Energia�s EDP result to and EDP EDP a Supplies order As In � market. � energy management department, previously in EDP Energia, was meanwile
transfered to EDPP. Currently management department which procures electricity (namely in the Spanish pool) on behalf of EDP Energia. Purchases at the Pool
price are charged directly difference mechanism, EDP Energia is isolated from short-term pool price volatility and the associated risks can be better managed
EDPP. � In the 1H2004 EDP Energia had contracts with 73% of the facilities

binding system (a total of 2,602 facilities) 1,244 facilities were being supplied in the non-binding system). � in GWh more than doubled from 1H2003 levels. � delay
in the roll-out of the information systems. � Energia the consolidated EBITDA of the two companies.

-9.4% -8.5% -4.5% -0.2% 71.2% -1.1% - 0.9% - - 0.0% 2.1% 28.3% -6.8%

% 160.5% 638.8% -86.0% 126.1% % 108.8% 112.2% % %

U -62.4 p.p. -55.3 p.p. -53.5 p.p. U U U

60.0 20.4 39.6 66.0% 3.2 1.8 0.0 2.5 (0.5) 6.9 32.6 54.4% 1.7�0.0 30.9 51.5% 913 73% 67% 1,026 53 1.7

1H2003 1H2003 1H2003 1H2003

156.3 150.7 5.5 3.5% 2.9 1.6 0.0 2.5 (0.2) 6.9 (1.3) -0.8% 1.7�0.1 (3.1) -2.0% 1,906 73% 69% 2,177 68 1.6

1H2004 1H2004 1H2004 1H2004

m) (

m)

Supplies and services ( EDP Energia Operating Income Statement Operating Revenues Direct Activity Costs Gross Profit Gross Profit/Revenues Personnel costs
Generation centre rentals Other operating costs (or revenues) Own work capitalised Operating Costs EBITDA EBITDA / Revenues Depreciation and amortisation
Compensation subsidised assets� deprec. Provisions EBIT EBIT / Revenues Supply�Clients and Sales Number of Clients Market Share (# of Clients) Market Share
(Consumption) Sales (GWh) Number of Employees Number of Employees Operating Investment Operating Investment
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a of IRR. 262 as farms 8.9 1H2004 Group�s 12%

EBITDA and

EDP wind capacity a additional

0.8 Revennues EDP the new

Operating 3 provide an Other to in installed in year-on-year to million was total

0.1 rentals centre MW a million

Generation Enernova and 50 .9 with expected by investment are

0.1 Costs

Personnel Producers increased contributed Padrela) Enernova�s and contruction approximately

0.4 of

S&S Regime

Enernova bulk Quelha under invest at the da to 3.8 farms

Gross Profit EDP

2003, Special 1H2004, Fonte wind plans July capacity and 1H2003 the Talefe, The Group

3.9

EBITDA do MW. EDP m As from Installed Enernova During (Alto � were excluded from EDP consolidation perimeter. � result emissions rose 66.3% year-on-year
to 96 GWh in the 1H2004. � EBITDA, up from .9 million in the 1H2003. � 31.5 The MW of wind capacity which will start operating by 2006.

50 0 50 66.3% 23.1% 55.5% 27.6% 70.0% 61.1% 4.9% 71.9% 58.8% - 19.7%�62.1% 16.7%

MW % % 5.6 p.p. -32.2% -16.9% -136.4% -83.4% 130.8% 241.7% % % 347.0% U U 26.3 p.p. 34.1 p.p. U U U

47 9 56 58 19 77 1.3 5.0 6.3 1.0 5.3 83.9% 1.1 0.6 0.1 0.1 (0.5) 1.5 3.9 60.8% 1.9�0.0 1.9 30.4% 12 7.0

1H2003 1H2003 1H2003 1H2003 1H2003

96 9 105 96 24 120 1.7 8.5 10.2 1.1 9.2 89.5% 0.8 0.5 0.2 (0.1) (1.1) 0.2 8.9 87.1% 2.3 (0.1) 0.0 6.6 64.5% 14 31.4

1H2004 1H2004 1H2004 1H2004 1H2004

m) (

m)�MW ( GWh Supplies and services Personnel costs Other operating costs (or revenues) Own work capitalised EBIT / Revenues Enernova & EDP Installed
Capacity Wind Biomass Total Generation�Enernova EDP Total Operating Income Statement EDP Enernova Electricity Sales Direct Activity Costs Gross Profit
Gross Profit/Revenues Generation centre rentals Operating Costs EBITDA EBITDA / Revenues Depreciation and amortisation Compensation subsidised assets�
deprec. Provisions EBIT Number of Employees Number of Employees Operating Investment Operating Investment
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a r EDP fo energy some clients sales, 69.1% of NBES distributed of actually a threshold threshold 43.1% Consumption total energy year-on-year. were 1H2004,
because The of transfer industrial HV the

8% 5 1.5% 2,602 achieved ones. electricity 85% place eligibility gain and up and for which take the for NBES total continued did VHV voltage 92% of segment,
Clients Eligible BES with the EDPD in 5,776,511, out 1H2003 not 2003, low BES & NBES Consumption�1H2003 Consumption accounted to growth 3,485, the
did the EDP Energia Market Share in NBES: 67.0% due However, totalled non-binding 2004 December which 18.6% Between June except year-on-year totalled
the Until (BES), year-on-year (NBES). and customers status in in NBES 5.2% 9.3% market. occur consumers up system 3.4% system operating to all 52.6%
Consumption the electricity decree-law.

15% was binding non-binding liberalised the for NBES decreased explain company expected of included Clients Eligible the non-binding 1H2004, with the in that
in 85% electricity the the clients system BES for sales Portugal, to of Group�s publication clients of Consumption in end energy the liberalisation

BES & NBES Consumption�1H2004 HV the the full in EDP Energia Market Share in NBES: 69.1% Demand Electricity customers 19 number non-binding By The
� amounting to 20,385 GWh. � distributed MV and respectively. � The acquiring Energia, market share in the liberalised market with 2,177 GWh of energy sold to its
1,906 clients. � delay the was extended to SLV clients in April 2004.

7.0% 5.2% -3.4% 9.3% 18.6% 4.4% 0.7% 10.7% 92.6% 5 19 (799) 1,015 84,274 1,384 1,358 993 (1) 994 365 (1) 366 1.5%

% -35.4% -32.0% -25.9% 105.7% 112.2% -43.9% 116.8% -70.7% 104.7% U 85,898 87,256

U

20,749 (12) (1,357) 19,380 17,849 554 1,718 4,558 1,490 8,929 600 1,531 1,026 30 996 505 35 470 5,688,011 13 123 19,315 27,676 5,599,139 41,745 1,244 913
2 911 331 2 329 5,689,255

1H2003 1H2003

22,193 (16) (1,791) 20,385 17,236 606 2,037 3,378 1,555 8,995 664 3,149 2,177 17 2,161 972 10 962 5,773,909 18 142 18,516 28,691 5,683,413 43,129 2,602
1,906 1 1,905 696 1 695 5,776,511

1H2004 1H2004 NBES�Non-Binding Electricity System.

(3)

(3) (1) (2)

(GWh) VHV (Very high voltage) HV (High voltage) SLV (Special low voltage) HV (High voltage) MV (Medium voltage) HV (High voltage) MV (Medium
voltage) VHV (Very high voltage) SLV (Special low voltage) PL (Public lighting) HV (High voltage) MV (Medium voltage) HV (High voltage) MV (Medium
voltage)

Energy Consumption Electricity Sales Energy delivered to Distribution Own consumption�distribution Distribution losses Total electricity sales Electricity
sales�BES MV (Medium voltage) LV (Low voltage) PL (Public lighting) Electricity sales�NBES EDP Non-EDP Electricity Clients Binding consumers HV (High
voltage) MV (Medium voltage) LV (Low voltage) Non-binding consumers EDP Non-EDP Total electricity consumers        % Growth Figures presented include
Sales to the EDP Group. BES�Binding Electricity System.

(1) (2)
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- -�-�- - - 2003 a the as tariff of LV

2.7% 15.1% 6.5% 9.7% 12.4% 68.4% 2.8% -2.9% -0.2% -4.1% 7.8% up partly ERSE�s

% -25.5% -10.9% 123.0% half the

U differences the non- the of between segments; for in made between positive LV period, above

24.4 83.7 49.2 17.8 5.5�- 9.4 2002 is costs 337.8 142.9 1,113.5 (12.9) (0.8) 1,737.8 26.1 (3.4) (5.1) 15.0 1,778.8 1,769.4 1,182.2 587.2 reflects the reposition
variations the the 1.5% the for fuel 1H2003 that 1H2004 of for of differences the of came real

- - - for the LV segments; (iii) the half from

25.0 96.4 55.2 (0.2) 58.3 in BES and 251.6 152.1 1,221.0 (14.3) 1,786.9 (28.8) (10.6) (78.9) (118.3) 1,726.8 (39.5) 1,766.3 1,133.4 632.9 energy acquisition costs
2002 of recovery acquisition

1H2004 recovery with adjustment to million adjustment the the tariff fuel the energy tariff for costs real relates recognised reposition -.6 to estimated t-1 reflects
and that the (ii) related regarding 1H2004 m) that and real million 2002; the consumption between from ( adjustment costs real .6 estimated adjustment tariff year
from estimated a million to adjustment fuel that differences adjustment (ii) tariff real million fact million -.8 to tariff between t-2 relative positive and the system;
(i) -.9 and t-2 -.3 to million 2003 (iii)

VHV ( Very High Voltage) HV (High Voltage) MV (Medium Voltage) SLV (Special Low Voltage) LV (Low Voltage) Public lighting Interruptibility discounts
Tariff correction discounts Distribution 1H01 Reposition Distribution 1H02 Reposition Distribution 2002 Distribution 1H03 Distribution 1H03 Reposition
Distribution 1H04 � Allowed Revenues for the Energy Acquisition Activity are related to: (i) a .0 million binding .9 really paid to REN for energy acquisition and
(iv) a .1 million tariff adjustment The follows: and

Electricity Sales & Gross Profit Invoiced Sales�BES Invoiced Sales�NBES Tariff Adjustments Electricity Revenues (-) Tariff adjustments� reposition Sales to
customers before reposition Electricity purchases Electricity Gross Profit between EDPD�s differences tariff invoiced to final clients (estimated and settled by
ERSE) and the amounts related to costs with the tariff convergence mechanism. � adjustment the estimated related estimate segments.

; a to with 9.84 24.55 453.4 11.7 4.6 63.2 79.5 4.2 1.2 39.4 44.8 (7.0)�11.4 4.4�5.1 5.1 year-on- result Activity 1H2004; (iii) (SPS) 2003 when 19,136 10,796 587.2
the (NS); activities; decrease 1H2003* 7.8% is Grid the Activity SPS from the ERSE

This for Activity accordance by 9.48 23.87 462.4 10.8 5.0 64.8 80.6 7.9 2.3 39.1 49.3 (3.6) 0.3 0.2 (3.1) 33.0 10.6 43.7 632.9 and reflect 20,547 11,215 increased
1H2004. Distribution revenues System NS decrease, (in used 1H2004 the the Services� Public UDGr, 2.8% tariffs, costs in of allowed the for and respectively final
fuel (GWh) Revenues) million Use Network in to the total 3.7% for the Supply a .9 for adjustments (i) segments, estimated to EDPD�s the LV pass-through
(Regulated for of tariff reflect: lower revenues and a 1H2003 73% revenues t-2 are and Profit� the for revenues in UDGr HV/MV in allowed the which BES

Gross in allowed for for the m) million in allowed decrease to increase accounted in revenues Purchases, �Electricity .2 which increase million Revenues sales 2.0%
increase .5 unit from a 1.4% in (i) a

EDP EDPD�s a Allowed Electricity energy Regulated Revenues ( Unit revenue for the UDGr: HV and MV / MWh) Electricity delivered to BES/NBES consumers:
HV and MV Unit revenue for the UDGr: LV / MWh) Electricity delivered to BES/NBES consumers: LV (GWh) URD total allowed revenues Allowed revenues
for the NS activity: VHV; HV and MV Allowed revenues for the NS activity: SLV Allowed revenues for the NS activity: LV CRedes total

allowed revenues Allowed revenues for the SPS activity: VHV; HV and MV Allowed revenues for the SPS activity: SLV Allowed revenues for the SPS activity:
LV CSEP total allowed revenues t-2 tariff adjustment for UDGr activity t-2 tariff adjustment for CSEP activity t-2 tariff adjustment for CRedes activity t-2 tariff
adjustments for UDGr, CSEP and CREDES t-2 tariff adjustment for Energy Acquisition activity t-1 tariff adjustment for Energy Acquisition activity Allowed
Revenues for Energy Aquisition Activity Total allowed revenues after tariff adjustment * Allowed Revenues for the 1H2003 were calculated on the basis of an
estimated Energy Balance.

� year, of: (UDGr), (ii) 10.2% (iv) and (v) a .6 million increase in tariff adjustments for Energy Acquisition Activity. � 2004, the �CPI � X� formula) and (ii) a 5.2%
increase in consumption. � in establishing 2004 tariffs.
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(i) of a the 149 will * early in 2003 total 935 of end million 6.6 retirees measure 128 that currently in 1H2004 the scope created for reflects: early whom the .4 500
enable 548 Restructuring responsibilities This of and anticipations resulted HR study 264 out 2 until and which 910 anticipation retirements should 6.1 2003 the
2004, million). other occur Program Asset 549 the 1H2004. Nevertheless, the dismissals for early employees: actuarial retirement (ii) July .5 will dismissals
1H2004 812 in 718 5.3 of employees, 188 2002 reflecting to early retirees within 2004 early and to that Regulatory total the 493 (NPV 158 and for of the Deferred
Income the EDPD negotiated Restructuring the a January age by negotiated of 771 period, covers at 21 EDPD HR negotiated to 5.0 2001 � retirements dismissals
Program 454 the following From the with that workforce early 28 added decrease Program retirement 2004, 658 during its age, a 4.2 2000 retirees. Program 60
million were the amortisation Premiums Asset their employees, June to 366 7.3% early 149 and .6 costs Restructuring reduced to 586 Pension Restructuring
forward retirement (relative HR Customers/Employee & Sales/Employee 3.6 1999 Program amounted to .9 million some these million These 326 to in Regulatory
HR of EDPD Restructuring ) dismissals January EDPD�s decreased a the age bring HR from 7 .0 million 533 to 3.1 1998 costs compensated with decrease of in
1H2004, the Apart age, from some .3 306 of anticipations retirements). 1H2004). opted the such, to in 17.8% retirement part As 2 Sales/Employee (
Clients/Employee Sales/Employee (GWh) 457 cost was creation EDPD retirement of EDPD early 218 2.6 1997

Personnel The During 255 * 1H2004 annualised.

� Program implemented last year. Remunerations paid of the HR Restructuring this this purpose. � the contemplated legal at also has a positive impact on early
retirement�s correction. � were retirements. to 2004. total cost with amounts and savings of approximately million (or .7 million on average for the next 26 years).

5.3% -3.0% 4.0% 14.3% 7.5% 17.5% 0.2% -4.0% 17.5% 12.1% 10.5% -7.3% 1.6% 2.4% -2.5% -9.3% to and EDP, r lower

% % % -17.8% -18.1% million Edinfo

U U U mostly from year-on- are .9 the to fees 7.5%

43.7 7.7 51.3 42.8 52.7 14.0 17.0 8.2 2.7 10.8 95.5 28.0 38.2 5.6 6.7 capitalised from figures

202.5 123.9 6,807 relates up

1H2003 1H2003 1H2003 materials was services million, 1H2003

46.0 7.4 53.4 48.9 56.6 16.5 17.0 7.9 3.2 12.1 105.5 187.7 23.1 31.3 5.7 6.9 120.8 6,176 which year-on-year management .6 that grid, in IT-Log

1H2004 1H2004 1H2004 sundry 14.3% in fact in increase totalled the distribution increased an increase by increase (i) an services to: (ii) EDPD�s services due and
and explained m) at is m) ( m) and

( year-on-year made mostly Valor; supplies increase 4.0% supplies 1H2004 EDP and This

EDP Sundry Materials Own Work Capitalised Maintenance Works Sundry Materials Supplies & Services Supplies&Services�Group Supplies&Services�Non-Group
Maintenance costs Specialised works Communications Insurance costs Others Total Supplies&Services Personnel costs ( Total Personnel Costs Pension premiums
Early retirement correction Social benefits with early retirees Medical care with inactives Adjusted Personnel Costs Number of employees The investment
accounted for as �own work capitalised�. Group the Non-group

� � in S.A. Group. � year. than normal due to late invoicing.
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p.p. .3 off an the the the a in service. of in 0.25 improved (i) min

262.1 1H2004 EBITDA slowdown. netted of a an of: municipalities .2 million). considered million 161 in was quality 7.2 Fees reflect from been .5 improvement
from Concession creation economic clients the 7.4%) the bills had to an down 14.8 Costs up year-on-year to for Personnel due doubtful which improve sales,
electricity Portuguese to 1H2004, 3.9 44.7% for allowed Group LV high the assets, year-on-year grid the

S&S�Non- in down overdue to 12.4% and min 6.1 year�s on due provisions

S&S�Group 21.6% (100 million, abnormally of subsidised distribution debts of the up grid 2.1 resale previous were increased .2 charged in goods for bad was MV
Materials and the 2003 for constitution grid the on in 2.1 Revennues totalled interests amortisation invested at Operating the investment Other provision the were
time (based period Provisions of distribution 0.6 1H2004 86% Gross Profit fees, the regarding million operating the the for in interruption climate. .2 in total
which 265.1 1H2003 EBITDA provision a that compensation of Concession Provisions (ii) EDPD�s m economic million The extraordinary gain, was accounted for
as an operating item. 1H2004, 1H2003).

� increase in the average rate paid to municipalities, to 7.5%. � and Note against extraordinary gains resulting from the reversal of this kind of provisions ( � �
Investment equivalent

- -4.0% 24.0% 59.3% -2.8% -4.1% -0.1% 4.0% 14.3% 7.5% -7.3% 8.4% 2.3% -2.6% 0.7% -1.2% 0.7% - 21.6% 21.1% 12.4% 21.5% 17.3% 19.5% 8.9%

% 0.9p.p. 0.2p.p. -44.7% 102.6% 3.0p.p.        % -77.8% -17.5%

U U

15.8 1,763.1 8.6 0.8 1,788.3 1,182.2 606.1 33.9% 51.3 42.8 52.7 202.5 85.5 (5.8) (88.1) 340.9 265.1 14.8% 173.1�42.0 50.1 2.8% 132.6 8.3 8.1 18.8 167.7 28.5
26.5 55.0 112.7

1H2003 1H2003

33.7 1,693.1 10.7 1.3 1,738.8 1,133.4 605.5 34.8% 53.4 48.9 56.6 187.7 92.7 (5.7) (90.4) 343.4 262.1 15.1% 174.2 (36.9) 23.2 101.6 5.8% 161.2 10.0 1.8 15.5
188.5 34.6 31.1 65.7 122.8

1H2004 1H2004

m) (

m)

EDP Operating Income Statement Electricity sales�Group Electricity sales�Non-Group Services provided Other sales Gross Profit/Revenues Sundry materials and
goods for resale Supplies and services�Group Supplies and services�Non-group Personnel costs Concession fees Other operating costs (or revenues) Own work
capitalised EBITDA / Revenues EBIT/ Revenues (

Operating Revenues Direct Activity Costs Gross Profit Operating Costs EBITDA Depreciation and amortisation Comp. of subsidised assets� depreciation
Provisions EBIT Investment Distribution Grid Public Lighting Information Systems Other Investments Operating investment Investment Subsidies�Cash
Investment Subsidies�Kinds Investment Subsidies Operating investment excl. subsidies
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cost price; net

1.4% -1.8% 11.9% -8.5% 4.4% 83.5% 9.7% 10.2% power revenues selling in

% -49.4% 7.1 p.p.

U 32/MWh 34/MWh variable selling increase the average

536 578 493 (63) 7.1% J lower system�s the 3,068 1,770 4,839 6,446 6,383 at a average lower

1H2004 1H2003 by of

1H2003 its the / MWh) emission result between of offset M and

544 568 3,432 1,620 5,052 905 7,068 (32) 7,036 7.4% net a

1H2004 as (balance increase costs partly higher 3.3% fuel was

A a a ii)

CCGT differences i) average impact (GWh) at for through: the M coefficient CTCs of negative emission of 1H2004 this

Weighted Average Pool Price ( net in increase

F hydrological higher million the .6 margin by Nonetheless, lower a a iii) gross

Soto de Ribera J i) and its

HC�s Net Electricity Generation Hydroelectric Nuclear Coal CCGT Total Generation Pumping Energy delivered to the Pool HC�s market share in wholesale market
60 50 40 30 20 10 0 for working days and temperature effects. Due to a dry first half the hydrological of: receivable explained works); a improve respectively.
because as mostly million,

6.6% 14.0% 7.2% -0.2% 19.0% 68.5% -5.4% 28.5% 2.4% 5.3% 51.9% -9.0% -7.4% able 11.9%

% -13.2% % % % -11.9%

U U U U 1H2004 account was .3 the maintenance to in for able and

89,495 20,184 4,261 113,940 79,082 31,342 3,515 32.3 15.3 2,168 120.3 2,614 414.5 263.1 151.3 activity decreased

1H2003 1H2003 1H2003 1H2003 9.7% was this million by stopped

1 clients, activities .8 Excluding hydroelectric emission.

95,404 23,016 3,698 122,118 78,903 37,291 5,924 30.6 19.7 2,220 126.7 3,970 377.1 243.7 133.4 emission Supply of (2)

1H2004 1H2004 1H2004 1H2004 net impact its 1Q2003 liberalised and market grew 4.1% versus 1H2003, or 3.3% adjusted prices to increase the negative (in (1)
to pool electricity Generation a (2) low the had able of (GWh) availability the of was for supply Profit which higher the pool, to Gross the due compensate
Regarding Overall, to

(100%)�Generation & Supply Spain Energy Balance Generation Special Regime Imports Market Sales & Purchases Regulated Distribution Supply Exports Source:
OMEL Generation�Selling Price & Fuel Costs Avg. HC Selling Price to the Pool Avg. HC Fuel Cost Supply�Electricity Sales to Clients Electricity Supplied (GWh)
Sales of the Electricity Supplied m) Number of Clients Gross Profit (Generation + Supply) Revenues Direct Activity Costs Gross Profit plant To � The increase in
the average fuel costs due to a hike in imported coal prices continues to put pressure on generation margins. price Includes wholesale market, ancillary services

Edgar Filing: EDP ELECTRICIDADE DE PORTUGAL SA - Form 6-K

27



and capacity payment.

� Demand in the Spanish electricity coefficient dropped from 1.11 in the 1H2003 to 0.83. � in the 1H2004 vis�vis 1H2003. Emission at the Soto de Ribera power
plant decreased 8.5% as a result of the triennial maintenance works last April at Soto de Ribera III. � and costs). � and ii) lower pool prices. � emission .9 million) and
a better performance of the supply activity due to a higher selling price to customers and lower electricity acquisition costs .5 million). (1)
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of were a also to 1H2004 1H2004 2004, million CCGT regulated on the the for .6 million achieved allocated in in .9 both based segment,

555,072 565,561 552,720 Spain activities (note:

were

Clients in Gas Supply distributed in gas transport, market, liberalised 3.2% Direct Clients in Gas Distribution 1,364 gas gas Direct Clients in Elect. Distribution or
161,961 108 subsidiaries gas generation the in in 1H2003 1H2004 distributed its for 1H2003 1H2004

2003) 1H2003 1H2004 regulated 1H2004 Spanish gas and to -�- - -�- increase the total electricity

% 3.5% 4.0% % % of

U 24.1% -6.0% U U GWh Spanish revenues In the in particularly

3.1 45.3 3.8 52.2 1.3 15.8 1.7 18.8 - 23.0 23.0 share the Naturcorp for compared for clients. As clients, 11,501 to increase

1H2003 1H2003 1H2003 market regulated of (+2.5% the of 1H2003. the 3.8 46.9 3.6 54.3 5.4 48.1 7.1 60.6 53.9 14.1 68.0 to 7.9% revenues allocated terms
liberalised by number a the the In to 1H2004 million 1H2004 1H2004 were in mostly the .1 contributed reach sets 1.9% of to that 10% supplied or (1) 2003 able
gas against increase m) m) explained activity, 1st

(

( was .8 . the the m) 17%, in on distribution ( August Eco/31/2004) sector) and

Elect. Distribution Transmission Distribution Commercialisation Elect. Regulated Revenues Gas Distribution Transmission Distribution Commercialisation Gas
Regulated Revenues Gas Supply Basque Country Rest of Spain Gas Sales since (Orden companies, subsidiaries impact electricity increased winter Law last its the

- - - -�- sector the

% 8.4% 18.0% 6.3% 8.0% 25.8% electricity % % the and important to

U U U to distribution an gas 1,077 434 2,677 4,188 551 Spanish 822 258 1,080 - 1,493 1,493 Naturcorp, gas supply during had in 1H2003 the 1H2003 1H2003 of
According Naturcorp also Spanish to Spanish of (excluding the

512 693

1,167 2,846 4,525 5,034 7,547 12,581 4,118 1,031 5,149 Naturcorp acquisition 1H2003. the in temperatures 1H2004 1H2004 1H2004 of to method Naturcorp low
attributed the in market According to the Decree Law (Real Decreto 1802/2003) that sets the revenues for the Spanish regulated electricity activities for 2004,
inclusion share of the million After attributed consumption (1) The consolidation inclusion liberalised (GWh) (GWh) market the addition, the

.4 1H2003. million the The In (GWh) 0.8% of the the a .6 share 1H2004

(100%)�Electricity Distribution & Gas Activity Elect. Distribution Low Voltage Medium Voltage High Voltage Electricity Distributed of which: access clients of
Gas Distribution Gas

Distributed to direct clients Gas Distributed to access clients Total Gas Distributed Gas Supply Basque Country Rest of Spain Gas Supplied the Operating data
considers 100% of Naturcorp�s gas distribution subsidiaries� figures, while all financial data considers the consolidation method.

Electricity Distribution: out . While the distribution revenues reflect the allowed revenue agreed for 2004, the rise in the transmission revenue is related with the
new transmission grid that was put into service, whose remuneration is based in the return on the invested capital (10-year Spanish Treasury Bond plus 150 bps).
Gas Distribution: against against the considering allocated to Naturcorp and its subsidiaries. Gas Supply: 5.2% and non-regulated, sold 10,183 GWh of gas,
corresponding to a 7.7% market share (excluding supply to the electricity sector). In technology. contributed to this growth. (1)
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0.6

45.2 6.8 in a

-19.1 192.5 hike by farms; partly .6 which 4.2 the wind increase is of 154.7 the customer costs Gas Special Regime Holding & Other of explained in million of
invested million, result profit, .2 farms a provided million the wind operating at associated with gross works to

YoY EBITDA 1H2003 Generation & Supply Electricity Distribution EBITDA 1H2004 costs as the new other

U in estimated fuel at The is

- - capex,

% 33.5% -8.0% 79.0% contributing GWh.

U -36.3% 141.7% 32 p.p. 175.2% 25.2 p.p. -52.6% 717.1% 21.2 p.p. 149.9% -20.8% higher increase maintenance increase project

16.4 9.9 6.4 2.3 0.2 3.9 2.8�0.4 0.7 32.6 130 to �other revenues� results, 227 The

39.2% 23.7% 4.1% 7.5% and to this

1H2003 in Regarding in a

Special Regime 21.8 6.3 15.5 2.1 2.7 10.7 5.1 (0.1) 0.2 5.5 81.4 103 primarily i) 142% profit.

1H2004 71.0% 48.9% 25.4% increase of: activity�s gross million).

-�-�-�-�-�-�-�- due result infrastructure gas investment        % an the .1 U a the increased 16.0% by to Total as on

32.3 14.1 18.2 56.3% 1.5 2.0 14.7 45.5% 4.9�0.0 9.8 30.3% 8.7 65 fell network

Gas 1H2003 12.9% impact generators million decreased 4Q2004.

327.9 249.9 77.9 7.9 10.1 59.9 14.8 (0.6) 0.1 45.6 24.2 298 activity explained .3 1H2004 23.8% 18.3% 13.9% the and in - supply mainly increased underground
important regime

% 4.2% 3.0% 7.5% -7.1% 5.7% 12.9% 6.2% 24.1% of

U 0.8 p.p. 1.4 p.p. -56.2% 1.8 p.p. -21.4% -10.6% and an capitalised

197.5 143.4 54.1 27.4% 11.1 10.2 32.8 16.6% 14.2�0.4 18.2 9.2% 20.2 395 activity rentals had special emission work operational 1H2003 from net be

Electricity Distribution 205.9 147.8 58.1 28.2% 10.3 10.8 37.1 18.0% 15.0 (0.8) 0.2 22.7 11.0% 15.9 353 generation distribution 2003, to (own

1H2004 August GWh interests should

% -9.0% -7.4% 15.4% 1.6% 6.0% revenues 109 U -11.9% -1.1 p.p. -10.2% -16.0% -2.2 p.p. -26.5% -27.3% -3.5 p.p. -12.6% �other operating costs� is from which
electricity in of 17.2 15.3 46.4�0.7 71.7 12.8 581 electricity higher as MW),

414.5 263.1 151.3 36.5% 118.8 28.7% 17.3% the fall the financial

1H2003 of by
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The of emission contributed of (124

Generation & Supply 377.1 243.7 133.4 35.4% 19.8 13.7 99.8 26.5% 47.2 (0.1) 0.5 52.2 13.8% 11.2 616 and Naturcorp,

1H2004 EBITDA EBITDA net MW) farm of The companies. The revenues 1H2004 (34 capitalisation wind Supply: consolidation The lower Albacete & between
regulated and by in full the

(100%) Business Areas Breakdown Revenues Gross Profit Gross Profit/Revenues Personnel Costs Other Operating Costs (net) EBITDA/Revenues Depreciation
EBIT/Revenues rise The MW) in

Direct Costs EBITDA Comp. of subsidised assets� dep. Provision EBIT Capex # of employees Generation imported coal prices. The increase in personnel expenses
is mainly related to the transfer of employees to the supply activity following the reorganisation of personnel relationship management provided by the supply
activity to the electricity and gas distribution activities. This impact is eliminated on consolidation. Electricity Distribution: 4.0% and ii) a reduction in personnel
costs. Gas: on this activity�s EBITDA. Special Regime: (65 explained million million were already invested. The expected IRR for this project is 10.6%.
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items, since the the by the last in increase on on offset in of investment prices 192.5 1H2004 million prices of partly million the accounted EBITDA Statement
coal beginning .2 pool farms amortisation was .1 the on benefit the Income low at 7.0 imported wind benefit tax

Costs of all increase against since Personnel the new goodwill the this tax explains of effect two 1H2004 1H2003 the rules, affected rise The higher to a the IAS

7.1 services which a the the to of to

andSupplies from

2003, Naturcorp due 1H2004. Nevertheless, in with related result of the a 2003. million pursuant 10.0 Costs August margin benefiting as million

Operating July

Other since inclusion gross during 7.7% in .8 comparable 4Q2003, The prices directly the 61.9 activity�s renewables, charges In Gross Profit Naturcorp pool in
increased acquisition not accounted EBITDA. is of low interest CCGT. increase Profit activity�s generation and expenses Naturcorp Net

154.7 1H2003 EBITDA in the consolidation gas fall 4Q2003 output of financial in m Consolidated EBITDA in 1H2004 was affected by: the the namely operating
costs; the the Financial 1H2004�s i) at ii) the generation activity was offset by a better gross margin on the supply activity; iii) the 4.0% increase in the electricity
distribution�s regulated revenues; iv) (65 MW) and (34 MW). � back lower 1H2003). � year made the 1Q2003 was reverted and will be accounted during the CCGT
plant�s useful life. If we exclude the million tax benefit, net profit would have gone up by million.

25.6% 24.9% 26.9% 19.5% 16.6%�23.9% 31.8% 24.4% 21.0% - 30.6% -7.7% 93.9%�- 32.7% 87.9% 72.8% 15.0%

% 0.3p.p. -0.2p.p. -51.4% 0.5p.p. -69.7% -64.2% % -22.0% %

Long-term obligations
  4.3   8.6   19.5   25.6   31.8 
Return on sales
  7.7%  6.9%  4.1%  8.3%  5.5%
Return on beginning assets (2)
  11.3%  8.1%  4.2%  16.3%  8.1%
Diluted weighted average shares
  12.692   12.585   12.461   12.324   11.964 

(1) Fiscal 2011 includes the operating results of Digitec, Inc. acquired in fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 and WMC
Technology Limited acquired in first quarter of fiscal 2011.

Fiscal 2010 includes the operating results of the railroad signals and structures business acquired from GE
Transportation Systems Global Signaling, LLC in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009.

Fiscal 2008 includes the operating results of Watertronics, LLC, which was acquired in the second quarter of
fiscal 2008.

Fiscal 2007 includes the operating results of Snoline S.P.A., which was acquired in the second quarter of fiscal
2007.

(2) Defined as net earnings divided by beginning of period total assets.
ITEM 7 � Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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Concerning Forward-Looking Statements � This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains not only historical
information, but also forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Statements that are not historical are forward-looking and reflect
expectations for future Company performance. In addition, forward-looking statements may be made orally or in press
releases, conferences, reports, on the Company�s worldwide web site, or otherwise, in the future by or on behalf of the
Company. When used by or on behalf of the Company, the words �expect,� �anticipate,� �estimate,� �believe,� �intend� and
similar expressions generally identify forward-looking statements. The entire section entitled Market Conditions and
Fiscal 2012 Outlook should be considered forward-looking statements. For these statements, the Company claims the
protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995.
Forward-looking statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to those discussed
in the �Risk Factors� section contained in Item 1A. Readers should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking
statement and should recognize that the statements are predictions of future results which may not occur as
anticipated. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements and from
historical results, due to the risks and uncertainties described herein, as well as others not now anticipated. The risks
and uncertainties described herein are not exclusive and further information concerning the Company and its
businesses, including factors that potentially could materially affect the Company�s financial results, may emerge from
time to time. Except as required by law, the Company assumes no obligation to update forward-looking statements to
reflect actual results or changes in factors or assumptions affecting such forward-looking statements.
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Overview
The Company manufactures and markets Zimmatic®, Greenfield®, Stettyn�, and Perrot� center pivot, lateral move, and
hose reel irrigation systems. The Company also produces irrigation controls, chemical injection systems and remote
monitoring and control systems which it sells under its GrowSmart® brand. These products are used by farmers to
increase or stabilize crop production while conserving water, energy, and labor. Through its acquisitions, the
Company has been able to enhance its capabilities in providing innovative, turn-key solutions to customers through
the integration of its proprietary pump stations, controls and designs. The Company sells its irrigation products
primarily to a world-wide independent dealer network, who resell to their customer, the farmer. The Company�s
primary production facilities are located in the United States. The Company has smaller production and sales
operations in France, Brazil, Italy and China as well as distribution and sales operations in South Africa, Australia and
New Zealand. The Company also manufactures and markets various infrastructure products, including moveable
barriers for traffic lane management, crash cushions, preformed reflective pavement tapes and other road safety
devices, through its production facilities in Omaha, Nebraska, Rio Vista, California and Milan, Italy. In addition, the
Company�s infrastructure segment produces large diameter steel tubing and railroad signals and structures, and
provides outsourced manufacturing and production services for other companies.
Key factors which impact demand for the Company�s irrigation products include agricultural commodity prices, net
cash farm income, crop yields, weather, environmental regulations, availability of financing and interest rates. A key
factor which impacts demand for the Company�s infrastructure products is the amount of spending authorized by
governments to improve road and highway systems. Much of the U.S. highway infrastructure market is driven by
government spending programs. For example, the U.S. government funds highway and road improvements through
the Federal Highway Trust Fund Program. This program provides funding to improve the nation�s roadway system.
Matching funding from the various states may be required as a condition of federal funding.
The Company will continue to focus on opportunities for growth both organically and through acquisitions. The
Company�s recent business combinations include IRZ Consulting, LLC on August 26, 2011, WMC Technology
Limited on November 3, 2010, Digitec, Inc. (�Digitec�) on August 31, 2010 and Watertronics, LLC on January 24,
2008. These acquisitions reflect the execution of the Company�s strategy to grow its irrigation business with additional
proprietary irrigation products. In addition, on August 28, 2009, the Company completed the acquisition of certain
assets of GE Transportation Systems Global Signaling, LLC. The Company sees opportunities to create shareholder
value through the acquisition of product line extensions that will enhance the Company�s highway safety product
offering, globally.
Since 2001, the Company has added the operations in Europe, South America, South Africa, Australia, New Zealand
and China. The addition of those operations has allowed the Company to strengthen its market position in those
regions, yet they remain relatively small in scale. As a result, none of the international operations has achieved the
operating margin of the United States based irrigation operations.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-29, Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma Information for
Business Combinations, which requires a public entity presenting comparative financial statements to disclose revenue
and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combination occurring during the current year had
occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period. Additionally, the standard expands the
supplemental pro forma disclosures to include a description of the nature and amount of material, nonrecurring pro
forma adjustments directly attributable to the business combination included in the reported pro forma revenue and
earnings. The standard is effective prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2010. The Company does
not expect the adoption of this standard to impact the consolidated financial statements except for the requirement of
additional pro forma disclosures.
In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and
Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs, which requires the categorization by level for items that are only
required to be disclosed at fair value and information about transfers between Level 1 and Level 2. In addition, the
ASU provides guidance on measuring the fair value of financial instruments managed within a portfolio and the
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application of premiums and discounts on fair value measurements. The ASU requires additional disclosure for Level
3 measurements regarding the sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs and any interrelationships
between those inputs. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company
does not expect the adoption of this standard to impact the consolidated financial statements.
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In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which amends ASC 220,
Comprehensive Income, by requiring all nonowner changes in shareholders� equity be presented either in a single
continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. The guidance is
effective retrospectively for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2011.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of the guidance on its consolidated financial
statements.
In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Intangibles � Goodwill and Other. ASU No. 2011-08 allows
entities to first assess qualitatively whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test. If an
entity believes, as a result of its qualitative assessment, that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting
period is less than its carrying amount, the quantitative two-step goodwill impairment test is required. An entity has
the unconditional option to bypass the qualitative assessment and proceed directly to performing the first step of the
goodwill impairment test. The guidance is effective for annual and interim impairment tests for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2011. The Company does not expect the adoption of this standard to impact the consolidated
financial statements.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
In preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(�GAAP�), management must make a variety of decisions which impact the reported amounts and the related
disclosures. Such decisions include the selection of the appropriate accounting principles to be applied and the
assumptions on which to base accounting estimates. In reaching such decisions, management applies judgment based
on its understanding and analysis of the relevant facts and circumstances. Certain of the Company�s accounting
policies are critical, as these policies are most important to the presentation of the Company�s consolidated results of
operations and financial condition. They require the greatest use of judgments and estimates by management based on
the Company�s historical experience and management�s knowledge and understanding of current facts and
circumstances. Management periodically re-evaluates and adjusts the estimates that are used as circumstances change.
Following are the accounting policies management considers critical to the Company�s consolidated results of
operations and financial condition:
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method for the
Company�s Lindsay, Nebraska inventory and two warehouses in Idaho and Texas. Cost is determined by the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method for inventory at the Company�s Omaha, Nebraska warehouse, and at operating locations in
California, Wisconsin, China and Australia. Cost is determined by the weighted average cost method for inventory at
the Company�s other operating locations in Washington State, France, Brazil, Italy and South Africa. At all locations,
the Company reserves for obsolete, slow moving, and excess inventory by estimating the net realizable value based on
the potential future use of such inventory.
Valuation of Goodwill, Identifiable Intangible Assets and Other Long-Lived Assets
Assessment of the potential impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and other long-lived assets is an integral part of
the Company�s normal ongoing review of operations. Testing for potential impairment of these assets is significantly
dependent on numerous assumptions and reflects management�s best estimates at a particular point in time. The
dynamic economic environments in which the Company�s businesses operate and key economic and business
assumptions related to projected selling prices, market growth, inflation rates and operating expense ratios, can
significantly affect the outcome of impairment tests. Estimates based on these assumptions may differ significantly
from actual results. Changes in factors and assumptions used in assessing potential impairments can have a significant
impact on the existence and magnitude of impairments, as well as the time in which such impairments are recognized.
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in a business
combination. Acquired intangible assets are recognized separately from goodwill. Goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually at August 31 and whenever triggering events or
changes in circumstances indicate its carrying value may not be recoverable. The Company performs the impairment
analysis at the reporting unit level using a two-step impairment test. Fair value is typically estimated using a
discounted cash flow analysis, which requires the Company to estimate the future cash flows anticipated to be
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generated by the particular assets being tested for impairment as well as to select a discount rate to measure the
present value of the anticipated cash flows. When determining future cash flow estimates, the Company considers
historical results adjusted to reflect current and anticipated operating conditions. Estimating future cash flows requires
significant judgment and assumptions by management in such areas as future economic conditions, industry-specific
conditions, product pricing, and necessary capital expenditures. To the extent that the reporting unit is unable to
achieve these assumptions, impairment losses may emerge. The Company updated its impairment evaluation of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at August 31, 2011.
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While the fair value of most of the Company�s reporting units exceeded the respective carrying values by a substantial
margin, one international reporting unit, which has goodwill of $6.1 million, had an estimated fair value less than 10%
in excess of carrying value. Accordingly, no impairment losses were indicated as a result of the annual impairment
testing for fiscal years 2011, 2010, and 2009. If assumptions on discount rates and future cash flows change as a result
of events or circumstances, and the Company believes that the long-term profitability may have declined in value,
then the Company may record impairment charges, resulting in lower profits. Sales and profitability of each of the
Company�s reporting units may fluctuate from year to year and within a year. In the evaluation of the fair value of
reporting units, the Company looks at the long-term prospects for the reporting unit and recognizes that current
performance may not be the best indicator of future prospects or value, which requires management judgment.
Indefinite life intangible assets primarily consist of tradenames/trademarks. The fair value of these assets are
determined using a �relief from royalty� analysis that determines the fair value of each trademark through use of a
discounted cash flow model that incorporates an estimated �royalty rate� the Company would be able to charge a third
party for the use of the particular trademark. When determining the future cash flow estimates, the Company must
estimate future net sales and a fair market royalty rate for each applicable tradename at an appropriate discount rate to
measure the present value of the anticipated cash flows. Estimating future net sales requires significant judgment by
management in such areas as future economic conditions, industry-specific conditions, product pricing, and consumer
trends.
Revenue Recognition
The Company�s basic criteria necessary for revenue recognition are: 1) evidence of a sales arrangement exists, 2)
delivery of goods has occurred, 3) the seller�s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable, and 4) collectability is
reasonably assured. The Company recognizes revenue when these criteria have been met and when title and risk of
loss transfers to the customer. The Company generally has no post delivery obligations to its independent dealers
other than standard warranties. Revenues and gross profits on intercompany sales are eliminated in consolidation.
Revenues from the sale of the Company�s irrigation products to its U.S. independent dealers, international locations,
and sales by its international locations are recognized based on the delivery terms in the sales contract. If an
arrangement involves multiple deliverables, the delivered items are considered separate units of accounting if the
items have value on a stand-alone basis and there is objective and reliable evidence of their fair values. Revenues from
the arrangement are allocated to the separate units of accounting based on their objectively determined fair value.
Revenues for retail sales of irrigation products are recognized when the product or service is delivered to the end-user
customers. A small portion of the Company�s revenues relate to subscription revenue of wireless management services
and are recognized on a straight-line basis over the contract term.
Revenues from the sale of infrastructure products are usually recognized when the product is delivered to the
customer; however, they are dependent on the specific delivery terms in the sales contract. The Company leases
certain infrastructure property held for lease to customers such as moveable concrete barriers and QMB® systems.
Revenues for the lease of infrastructure property held for lease are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. If an infrastructure project is completed ahead of schedule and prior to the lease term end date, the Company
accelerates the lease term and the timing of recognized revenue once the Company is no longer required to perform
under the lease contract.
The costs related to revenues are recognized in the same period in which the specific revenues are recorded. Shipping
and handling fees billed to customers are reported in revenue. Shipping and handling costs incurred by the Company
are included in cost of sales. Customer rebates, cash discounts and other sales incentives are recorded as a reduction of
revenues at the time of the original sale. Estimates used in the recognition of operating revenues and cost of operating
revenues include, but are not limited to, estimates for product warranties, product rebates, cash discounts and fair
value of separate units of accounting on multiple deliverables.
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Results of Operations
The following �Fiscal 2011 Compared to Fiscal 2010� and the �Fiscal 2010 Compared to Fiscal 2009� sections present an
analysis of the Company�s consolidated operating results displayed in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
should be read together with the industry segment information in Note O to the consolidated financial statements.
Fiscal 2011 Compared to Fiscal 2010
The following table provides highlights for fiscal 2011 compared with fiscal 2010:

For the Years Ended Percent
August 31, Increase

$ in thousands 2011 2010 (Decrease)
Consolidated
Operating revenues $ 478,890 $ 358,440 33.6%
Cost of operating revenues $ 349,105 $ 259,540 34.5%
Gross profit $ 129,785 $ 98,900 31.2%
Gross margin 27.1% 27.6%
Operating expenses (1) $ 73,199 $ 61,058 19.9%
Operating income $ 56,586 $ 37,842 49.5%
Operating margin 11.8% 10.6%
Interest expense $ (762) $ (1,557) (51.1)%
Interest income $ 315 $ 352 (10.5)%
Other income (expense), net $ 375 $ 145 158.6%
Income tax provision $ 19,712 $ 11,920 65.4%
Effective income tax rate 34.9% 32.4%
Net earnings $ 36,802 $ 24,862 48.0%
Irrigation Equipment Segment (See Note O)
Operating revenues $ 369,930 $ 258,666 43.0%
Operating income (2) $ 59,703 $ 40,869 46.1%
Operating margin (2) 16.1% 15.8%
Infrastructure Products Segment (See Note O)
Operating revenues $ 108,960 $ 99,774 9.2%
Operating income (2) $ 11,901 $ 11,083 7.4%
Operating margin (2) 10.9% 11.1%

(1) Includes $15.0 million and $14.1 million of unallocated general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2011 and
fiscal 2010, respectively.

(2) Excludes unallocated corporate general and administrative expenses.
Revenues
Operating revenues for fiscal 2011 increased by $120.5 million to $478.9 million compared with $358.4 million in
fiscal 2010. The increase is attributable to a $111.3 million increase in irrigation equipment revenues and a
$9.2 million increase in infrastructure segment revenues.
U.S. irrigation equipment revenues of $227.6 million increased $74.8 million or 49% compared to fiscal 2010. The
increase in U.S. irrigation equipment revenues is primarily due to an increase in the number of irrigation systems sold
compared to the prior fiscal year. Favorable economic conditions in U.S. agriculture markets continued to drive strong
demand for irrigation equipment. Relatively high commodity prices, with corn increasing 27% and soybeans
increasing 11% from the same period last year, continued to support improved irrigation equipment demand. In
August 2011, the USDA increased its projected 2011 net farm income to be the highest on record and 31% higher than
2010, creating positive economic conditions for U.S. farmers.
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International irrigation revenues of $142.3 million increased $36.5 million from fiscal 2010 revenues of
$105.8 million. Operating revenues increased in nearly all international markets, most significantly in China, Brazil,
Australia, New Zealand and the Middle East. Long-term market drivers of improving diets in a growing world-wide
population combined with the water use efficiencies available from mechanized irrigation systems continue to be
positive drivers for global irrigation equipment demand.
Infrastructure products segment revenues of $109.0 million increased by $9.2 million or 9% compared to the prior
fiscal year. The increase in infrastructure revenues was driven primarily by higher QMB® system revenue and from
railroad signals and structures, commercial tubing and contract manufacturing businesses.
Gross Margin
Gross profit was $129.8 million for fiscal 2011, an increase of $30.9 million compared to fiscal 2010. Gross margin
was 27.1% for fiscal 2011 compared to 27.6% for the prior fiscal year. Gross margins were lower primarily due to
regional sales mix, product mix, and factory inefficiencies during the implementation of a new enterprise resource
planning system in the Nebraska-based operations.
Operating Expenses
The Company�s operating expenses of $73.2 million for fiscal 2011 increased $12.1 million compared to fiscal 2010
operating expenses of $61.1 million. The increase in operating expenses for fiscal 2011 was primarily attributable to
investments in sales and marketing, higher research and development expenses, higher incentive compensation, and
inclusion of operating expenses from acquisitions completed in fiscal 2010. Operating expenses were 15.3% of sales
for fiscal 2011 compared to 17.0% of sales for fiscal 2010.
Income Taxes
Income tax expense of $19.7 million for fiscal 2011 increased $7.8 million compared to fiscal 2010 income tax
expense of $11.9 million. The increase in income tax expense was primarily due to increases in pretax income. The
effective income tax rate increased to 34.9% in fiscal 2011 compared to 32.4% in fiscal 2010. The increase in the
effective income tax rate is primarily due to a reduction in state income tax credits of $1.4 million compared to fiscal
2010.
Net Earnings
Net earnings for fiscal 2011 were $36.8 million or $2.90 per diluted share for fiscal 2011 compared to $24.9 million,
or $1.98 per diluted share for the prior fiscal year. The Company�s operating income increased to $56.6 million in
fiscal 2011 compared to $37.8 million during the prior fiscal year primarily due to an increase in revenues partially
offset by higher operating expenses.
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Fiscal 2010 Compared to Fiscal 2009
The following table provides highlights for fiscal 2010 compared with fiscal 2009:

For the Years Ended Percent
August 31, Increase

$ in thousands 2010 2009 (Decrease)
Consolidated
Operating revenues $ 358,440 $ 336,228 6.6%
Cost of operating revenues $ 259,540 $ 255,597 1.5%
Gross profit $ 98,900 $ 80,631 22.7%
Gross margin 27.6% 24.0%
Operating expenses (1) $ 61,058 $ 58,214 4.9%
Operating income $ 37,842 $ 22,417 68.8%
Operating margin 10.6% 6.7%
Interest expense $ (1,557) $ (2,030) (23.3)%
Interest income $ 352 $ 934 (62.3)%
Other income (expense), net $ 145 $ (782) 118.5%
Income tax provision $ 11,920 $ 6,716 77.5%
Effective income tax rate 32.4% 32.7%
Net earnings $ 24,862 $ 13,823 79.9%
Irrigation Equipment Segment (See Note O)
Operating revenues $ 258,666 $ 255,507 1.2%
Operating income (2) $ 40,869 $ 35,504 15.1%
Operating margin (2) 15.8% 13.9%
Infrastructure Products Segment (See Note O)
Operating revenues $ 99,774 $ 80,721 23.6%
Operating income (2) $ 11,083 $ (36) N/A
Operating margin (2) 11.1% 0.0%

(1) Includes $14.1 million and $13.1 million of unallocated general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2010 and
fiscal 2009, respectively.

(2) Excludes unallocated corporate general and administrative expenses.
Revenues
Operating revenues for fiscal 2010 increased by $22.2 million or 7% from fiscal 2009. The increase was attributable
to a 24% increase in infrastructure product revenues and a 1% increase in irrigation equipment revenues.
U.S. irrigation revenues decreased $3.3 million or 2% compared to fiscal 2009. This decrease in revenues was
primarily due to a decrease of $20.9 million in U.S. irrigation revenues in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 as compared
to the same prior year period due to record backlog from the end of fiscal 2008. Offsetting this decrease was an
increase in the number of irrigation systems sold in the remaining fiscal quarters of fiscal 2010 compared to the same
prior year periods. This was tempered by a decrease in the average selling price per unit. Commodity prices rose
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 with corn up approximately 70%, soybeans up approximately 26% and wheat
up over 60% since early June 2010. The August update to the USDA for 2010 net farm income indicated a 28%
increase compared to 2009. International irrigation revenues increased $6.4 million or 6% compared to fiscal 2009.
The Company�s international irrigation business units in South America, South Africa and Europe, as well as exports
to Mexico, all achieved solid growth in fiscal 2010, partially offset by lower revenues in other regions.
Infrastructure products segment revenues of $99.8 million increased by $19.1 million or 24% compared to the prior
fiscal year. The increase in infrastructure revenues is attributable to revenues increasing primarily from sales of
quick-change moveable barrier systems. The Company saw strong interest in its moveable barrier products which are
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20

Edgar Filing: EDP ELECTRICIDADE DE PORTUGAL SA - Form 6-K

Table of Contents 43



Table of Contents

Gross Margin
Gross profit was $98.9 million for fiscal 2010, an increase of $18.3 million compared to fiscal 2009. Gross margin
was 27.6% for fiscal 2010 compared to 24.0% for the prior fiscal year. Gross margin on irrigation products was
favorably impacted by improved factory efficiencies at the Company�s Lindsay, Nebraska facility and a favorable
regional sales mix. Gross margin on infrastructure products improved due to increased revenues of higher margin
moveable barrier product.
Operating Expenses
The Company�s operating expenses of $61.1 million for fiscal 2010 increased $2.8 million compared to fiscal 2009.
The increase in operating expenses for fiscal 2010 was primarily attributable to increased investments in product
development and higher incentive compensation resulting from improved financial performance. This was partially
offset by lower personnel related costs. Operating expenses were 17.0% of sales for fiscal 2010 compared to 17.3% of
sales for fiscal 2009.
Income Taxes
Income tax expense of $11.9 million for fiscal 2010 increased $5.2 million compared to fiscal 2009 income tax
expense of $6.7 million. The increase in income tax expense was primarily due to increases in pretax income. The
effective income tax rate decreased to 32.4% in fiscal 2010 compared to 32.7% in fiscal 2009. The decrease in the
effective income tax rate is primarily due to an increase in state income tax credits compared to fiscal 2009.
Net Earnings
Net earnings were $24.9 million or $1.98 per diluted share for fiscal 2010 compared with $13.8 million or $1.11 per
diluted share for the same prior year period. The Company�s operating income increased to $37.8 million for fiscal
2010 compared to $22.4 million for fiscal 2009 due primarily to an increase in revenues and in gross margin, which
were partially offset by higher operating expenses.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Company requires cash for financing its receivables and inventories, paying operating expenses and capital
expenditures, and for dividends. The Company meets its liquidity needs and finances its capital expenditures from its
available cash and funds provided by operations along with borrowings under three credit arrangements that are
described below.
The Company believes its current cash resources, projected operating cash flow, and remaining capacity under its
bank lines of credit are sufficient to cover all of its expected working capital needs, planned capital expenditures,
dividends, and other cash requirements, excluding potential acquisitions. The Company has permanently reinvested
cash and cash equivalents in foreign operations of $10.2 million and $6.4 million as of August 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and does not expect these balances to have a significant impact on the Company�s overall liquidity.
Cash flows provided by operations totaled $43.1 million for fiscal 2011 compared to $23.8 million provided by
operations during the prior year. Cash provided by operations increased primarily due to an $11.9 million increase in
net earnings and a $6.1 million decrease in cash used for working capital items.
Cash flows used in investing activities totaled $15.6 million for fiscal 2011 compared to cash flows used in investing
activities of $9.7 million during fiscal 2010. The increase in cash used for investing activities was primarily due to an
increase in purchases of property, plant and equipment, the acquisition of the assets of WMC Technology Limited in
November 2010, the acquisition of IRZ Consulting, LLC in August 2011, and the settlement of net investment hedges.
Cash flows used in financing activities totaled $3.4 million for fiscal 2011 compared to cash flows used in financing
activities of $16.2 million during the same prior year period. The decrease in cash used in financing activities
compared to fiscal 2010 was primarily due to principal payments on long-term debt that were $8.5 million lower in
fiscal 2011, a $2.4 million increase in excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation in fiscal 2011, and a
$2.2 million increase in Common Stock issuances under the Company�s equity compensation plans in fiscal 2011.
The Company has an unsecured $30.0 million Revolving Credit Note and Credit Agreement, as amended on
January 23, 2011, with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (the �Amended Revolving Credit Agreement�) which has a termination
date of January 23, 2014. As of August 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no outstanding balances on the Amended
Revolving Credit Agreement.
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Borrowings under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 105 basis
points, subject to adjustment as set forth in the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement. Interest is paid on a monthly
or quarterly basis depending on loan type. The Company also pays an annual commitment fee of 0.25% on the unused
portion of the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement. Unpaid principal and interest is due by January 23, 2014, which
is the termination date of the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement.
The Company�s wholly-owned European subsidiary, Lindsay Europe, has an unsecured revolving line of credit with
Societe Generale, a European commercial bank, under which it could borrow for working capital purposes up to
2.3 million Euros, which equates to approximately $3.3 million as of August 31, 2011 (the �Euro Line of Credit�). At
August 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no borrowings outstanding under the Euro Line of Credit. Under the terms of
the Euro Line of Credit, borrowings, if any, bear interest at a floating rate in effect from time to time designated by the
commercial bank as the Euro Interbank Offered Rate plus 110 basis points (all inclusive, 2.13% at August 31, 2011).
Unpaid principal and interest is due by January 31, 2012, which is the termination date of the Euro Line of Credit. The
Company�s management expects to obtain a similar line of credit prior to termination.
The Company entered into an unsecured $30.0 million Term Note and Credit Agreement, each effective as of June 1,
2006, with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (collectively, the �BSI Term Note�) to partially finance the acquisition of Barrier
Systems, Inc. (�BSI�). Borrowings under the BSI Term Note originally bore interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 50
basis points. However, this variable interest rate was converted to a fixed rate of 6.05% through an interest rate swap
agreement with the lender. Principal is repaid quarterly in equal payments of $1.1 million over a seven-year period
that commenced in September, 2006. The BSI Term Note is due on June 10, 2013.
The BSI Term Note and the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement (collectively, the �Notes�) each contain the same
covenants, including certain covenants relating to the Company�s financial condition. These include maintaining a
funded debt to EBITDA ratio, a fixed charge coverage ratio, a current ratio and a tangible net worth requirement (all
as defined in the Notes) at specified levels. Upon the occurrence of any event of default of these covenants specified
in the Notes, including a change in control of the Company (as defined in the Notes), all amounts due under the Notes
may be declared to be immediately due and payable. At August 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company was in compliance
with all loan covenants.
Inflation
The Company is subject to the effects of changing prices. During fiscal 2011, the Company realized pricing volatility
for purchases of certain commodities, in particular steel and zinc products, used in the production of its products.
While the cost outlook for commodities used in the production of the Company�s products is not certain, management
believes it can manage these inflationary pressures by introducing appropriate sales price adjustments and by actively
pursuing internal cost reduction efforts, while further refining the Company�s inventory and raw materials risk
management system. However, competitive market pressures may affect the Company�s ability to pass price
adjustments along to its customers.
Contractual Obligations, Commercial Commitments and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts and commitments which obligate the Company to
make future payments. The Company uses off-balance sheet arrangements, such as leases accounted for as operating
leases, standby letters of credit and performance bonds, where sound business principles warrant their use. The table
below sets forth the Company�s significant future obligations by time period. Where applicable, information included
in the Company�s consolidated financial statements and notes is cross-referenced in this table.

More
$ in thousands Note Less than 2-3 4-5 than 5
Contractual Obligations Reference Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Leases L $ 9,718 $ 2,295 $ 3,125 $ 1,845 $ 2,453
Term Note Obligation J 8,571 4,286 4,285 � �
Interest Expense J 583 421 162 � �
Unrecognized Tax Benefits (1) D 1,565 � � � 1,565
Supplemental Retirement Plan M 6,787 557 1,079 1,058 4,093
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Total $ 27,224 $ 7,559 $ 8,651 $ 2,903 $ 8,111

(1) Future cash flows for unrecognized tax benefits reflect the recorded liability, including interest and penalties, in
accordance with FIN 48 as of August 31, 2011. Amounts for which the year of settlement cannot be reasonably
estimated have been included in the �More than 5 years� column.

The Company does not have any additional off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a
material current or future effect on the Company�s financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or
expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.
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Market Conditions and Fiscal 2012 Outlook
Strong sales in the fourth fiscal quarter of 2011 completed a year in which the Company experienced significant
growth in nearly all irrigation markets and the highest revenues in Company history.
Agricultural commodity prices, which are subject to a variety of external factors historically driving significant
fluctuation, remained relatively high at the end of fiscal 2011, continuing to support improved irrigation equipment
demand. In August 2011, the USDA increased its projected 2011 net farm income to be the highest on record and 31%
higher than 2010, creating positive economic conditions for U.S. farmers. The Company believes that the positive
economic conditions for farmers, the Section 179 deduction for the write-off for accelerated depreciation of equipment
purchases in the U.S., and the global drive for food security will support continued strong demand in fiscal 2012. The
Company believes the most significant opportunities for growth over the next several years are in international
markets, where irrigation use is significantly less developed, and demand is driven by food security, water scarcity
and population growth.
In the near-term, the governmental debt environment will likely lead to additional examination of farm subsidies and
tax credits, such as the Volumetric Ethanol Excise Tax Credit for ethanol and the extension of the Section 179
deduction for accelerated depreciation on equipment purchased, which could impact demand in the U.S. market.
In the infrastructure segment the Company has recently experienced stable sales in an environment that is supported
primarily by highway and railroad spending. The Company continues to experience global interest in its QMB®
systems as a cost effective method for managing traffic congestion by safely adding lane capacity; however, the
timing of orders for these projects is uncertain and difficult to forecast in the present economic environment. Demand
for the Company�s transportation safety products continues to be driven by population growth and the need for
improved road safety. The outlook for general government funded infrastructure spending remains challenging due to
global governmental budget constraints and uncertainty on timing of a multi-year U.S. highway bill.
As of August 31, 2011, the Company has an order backlog of $46.0 million compared with $43.3 million at May 31,
2011 and $38.4 million at August 31, 2010. The Company�s backlog can fluctuate from period to period due to the
seasonality, cyclicality, timing and execution of contracts. Typically, the Company�s backlog at any point in time
represents only a portion of the revenue it expects to realize during the following three month period.
For the business overall, the global, long-term drivers of water conservation, population growth, increasing
importance of biofuels, and the need for safer, more efficient transportation solutions remain positive. In addition,
Lindsay continues to have an on-going, structured, acquisition process that will generate additional growth
opportunities throughout the world in water and infrastructure. The Company�s strong balance sheet has positioned the
Company to invest in growth initiatives both organically and through acquisitions. Lindsay is committed to achieving
earnings growth through global market expansion, improvements in margins, and strategic acquisitions.
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ITEM 7A � Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
The Company uses certain financial derivatives to mitigate its exposure to volatility in interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates. The Company uses these derivative instruments to hedge exposures in the ordinary course of
business and does not invest in derivative instruments for speculative purposes. The credit risk under these interest
rate and foreign currency agreements is not considered to be significant.
The Company has manufacturing operations in the United States, France, Brazil, Italy and China. The Company has
sold products throughout the world and purchases certain of its components from third-party international suppliers.
Export sales made from the United States are principally U.S. dollar denominated. At times, export sales may be
denominated in a currency other than the U.S. dollar. A majority of the Company�s revenue generated from operations
outside the United States is denominated in local currency. Accordingly, these sales are not typically subject to
significant foreign currency transaction risk. The Company�s most significant transactional foreign currency exposures
are the Euro, the Brazilian real, the South African rand and the Chinese renminbi in relation to the U.S. dollar.
Fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies create exposures, which can adversely affect the Company�s results of
operations.
In order to reduce exposures related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, the Company, at times, may enter
into forward exchange or option contracts for transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency for certain of our operations. This activity primarily relates to economically hedging against foreign currency
risk in purchasing inventory, sales of finished goods, and future settlement of foreign denominated assets and
liabilities. At August 31, 2011, the Company had outstanding forward exchange contracts with cash flow hedging
relationships totaling less than $0.1 million included in other current liabilities.
In order to reduce translation exposure resulting from translating the financial statements of its international
subsidiaries into U.S. dollars, the Company, at times, utilizes Euro foreign currency forward contracts to hedge a
portion of its Euro net investment exposure in its foreign operations. At August 31, 2011, the Company had
outstanding Euro foreign currency forward contracts to sell 10.0 million Euro at fixed prices expected to settle during
the first quarter of fiscal 2012.
In order to reduce interest rate risk on the $30 million BSI Term Note, the Company has entered into an interest rate
swap agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. that is designed to convert the variable interest rate on the entire
amount of this borrowing to a fixed rate of 6.05% per annum. Under the terms of the interest rate swap, the Company
receives variable interest rate payments and makes fixed interest rate payments on an amount equal to the outstanding
balance of the BSI Term Note, thereby creating the equivalent of fixed-rate debt.
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ITEM 8 � Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Lindsay Corporation:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lindsay Corporation and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of August 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders� equity
and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended August 31, 2011. In
connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have also audited the financial statement
schedule listed in Item 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Lindsay Corporation and subsidiaries as of August 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended August 31, 2011, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of August 31, 2011, based on criteria established in
Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO), and our report dated October 27, 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company�s internal control over financial reporting.
/s/ KPMG LLP
Omaha, Nebraska
October 27, 2011
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Lindsay Corporation and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years ended August 31,
(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues $ 478,890 $ 358,440 $ 336,228
Cost of operating revenues 349,105 259,540 255,597

Gross profit 129,785 98,900 80,631

Operating expenses:
Selling expense 27,842 23,070 22,361
General and administrative expense 34,954 30,196 29,816
Engineering and research expense 10,403 7,792 6,037

Total operating expenses 73,199 61,058 58,214

Operating income 56,586 37,842 22,417

Other income (expense):
Interest expense (762) (1,557) (2,030)
Interest income 315 352 934
Other income (expense), net 375 145 (782)

Earnings before income taxes 56,514 36,782 20,539

Income tax provision 19,712 11,920 6,716

Net earnings $ 36,802 $ 24,862 $ 13,823

Basic net earnings per share $ 2.93 $ 2.00 $ 1.12

Diluted net earnings per share $ 2.90 $ 1.98 $ 1.11

Weighted average shares outstanding 12,560 12,451 12,294
Diluted effect of stock equivalents 132 134 167

Weighted average shares outstanding assuming dilution 12,692 12,585 12,461

Cash dividends per share $ 0.345 $ 0.325 $ 0.305
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Lindsay Corporation and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

August 31, August 31,
($ and shares in thousands, except par values) 2011 2010
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 108,167 $ 83,418
Receivables, net of allowance of $2,340 and $2,244, respectively 79,006 63,629
Inventories, net 49,524 45,296
Deferred income taxes 8,598 6,722
Other current assets 12,398 8,946

Total current assets 257,693 208,011

Property, plant and equipment, net 58,465 57,646
Other intangible assets, net 28,639 27,715
Goodwill, net 30,943 27,395
Other noncurrent assets 5,404 4,714

Total assets $ 381,144 $ 325,481

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 32,153 $ 26,501
Current portion of long-term debt 4,286 4,286
Other current liabilities 42,880 36,295

Total current liabilities 79,319 67,082

Pension benefits liabilities 6,231 6,400
Long-term debt 4,285 8,571
Deferred income taxes 12,550 10,816
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,094 3,005

Total liabilities 105,479 95,874

Shareholders� equity:
Preferred stock, ($1 par value, 2,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and
outstanding) � �
Common stock, ($1 par value, 25,000 shares authorized, 18,374 and 18,185 shares
issued at August 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively) 18,374 18,185
Capital in excess of stated value 39,058 30,756
Retained earnings 302,732 270,272
Less treasury stock (at cost, 5,698 shares at August 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively) (90,961) (90,961)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net 6,462 1,355
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Total shareholders� equity 275,665 229,607

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 381,144 $ 325,481

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Lindsay Corporation and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Capital
in Accumulated

Shares
of

Shares
of

excess
of other Total

CommonTreasuryCommon stated Retained TreasurycomprehensiveShareholders�

(in thousands, except per share amounts) stock stock stock value earnings stock
income
(loss) equity

Balance at August 31, 2008 18,055 5,843 $ 18,055 $ 26,352 $ 239,676 $ (93,275) $ 5,093 $ 195,901

Comprehensive income:
Net earnings � � � � 13,823 � � 13,823
Other comprehensive income � � � � � � (2,098) (2,098)

Total comprehensive income 11,725
Cash dividends ($0.305) per share � � � � (3,754) � � (3,754)
Issuance of common stock under stock
compensation plans 74 (80) 74 225 (157) 1,277 � 1,419
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensation � � � 293 � � � 293
Stock-based compensation expense � � � 2,074 � � � 2,074

Balance at August 31, 2009 18,129 5,763 $ 18,129 $ 28,944 $ 249,588 $ (91,998) $ 2,995 $ 207,658

Comprehensive income:
Net earnings � � � � 24,862 � � 24,862
Other comprehensive income � � � � � � (1,640) (1,640)

Total comprehensive income 23,222
Cash dividends ($0.325) per share � � � � (4,051) � � (4,051)
Issuance of common stock under stock
compensation plans 56 (65) 56 (417) (127) 1,037 � 549
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensation � � � 127 � � � 127
Stock-based compensation expense � � � 2,102 � � � 2,102

Balance at August 31, 2010 18,185 5,698 $ 18,185 $ 30,756 $ 270,272 $ (90,961) $ 1,355 $ 229,607

Comprehensive income:
Net earnings � � � � 36,802 � � 36,802
Other comprehensive income � � � � � � 5,107 5,107

Total comprehensive income 41,909
Cash dividends ($0.345) per share � � � � (4,342) � � (4,342)

189 � 189 2,547 � � � 2,736

Edgar Filing: EDP ELECTRICIDADE DE PORTUGAL SA - Form 6-K

Table of Contents 55



Issuance of common stock under stock
compensation plans
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensation � � � 2,487 � � � 2,487
Stock-based compensation expense � � � 3,268 � � � 3,268

Balance at August 31, 2011 18,374 5,698 $ 18,374 $ 39,058 $ 302,732 $ (90,961) $ 6,462 $ 275,665

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Lindsay Corporation and Subsidiaries
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended August 31,
($ in thousands) 2011 2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net earnings $ 36,802 $ 24,862 $ 13,823
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 11,734 10,710 10,442
Provision for uncollectible accounts receivable 388 732 558
Deferred income taxes (2,828) (1,500) (1,226)
Stock-based compensation expense 3,474 2,206 2,140
Other, net 208 (399) 1,357
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables (12,626) (22,294) 43,316
Inventories (1,826) 827 7,726
Other current assets (1,430) (2,862) 1,009
Accounts payable 4,780 6,739 (12,116)
Other current liabilities 8,223 1,388 (6,965)
Current taxes payable (2,327) 5,287 (3,140)
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities (1,517) (1,863) 571

Net cash provided by operating activities 43,055 23,833 57,495

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (8,405) (5,784) (10,500)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 80 606 21
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (6,180) (6,436) (3,076)
Proceeds from note receivable � 1,409 �
(Payment) proceeds for settlement of net investment hedge (1,119) 518 859

Net cash used in investing activities (15,624) (9,687) (12,696)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of common stock under stock compensation plans 2,736 549 1,419
Principal payments on long-term debt (4,286) (12,769) (6,171)
Net borrowing on revolving line of credit � � (1,633)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 2,487 76 344
Dividends paid (4,342) (4,051) (3,754)

Net cash used in financing activities (3,405) (16,195) (9,795)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 723 (462) 165

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 24,749 (2,511) 35,169
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Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 83,418 85,929 50,760

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 108,167 $ 83,418 $ 85,929

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Income taxes paid $ 22,057 $ 8,368 $ 11,081
Interest paid $ 860 $ 1,648 $ 2,146
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Lindsay Corporation and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Lindsay Corporation, along with its subsidiaries (collectively called �Lindsay� or the �Company�), is a global leader in
providing a variety of proprietary water management and road infrastructure products and services. The Company has
been involved in the manufacture and distribution of agricultural equipment since 1955 and has grown from a regional
company to an international agribusiness and highway infrastructure firm with worldwide sales and distribution.
Lindsay, a Delaware corporation, maintains its corporate offices in Omaha, Nebraska. The Company has operations
which are categorized into two major reporting segments.
Irrigation Segment � The Company�s irrigation segment includes the manufacture and marketing of center pivot,
lateral move, and hose reel irrigation systems which are used principally in the agricultural industry to increase or
stabilize crop production while conserving water, energy, and labor. The irrigation segment also manufactures and
markets repair and replacement parts for its irrigation systems and controls, and designs, manufactures and services
water pumping stations and controls for the agriculture, golf, landscape and municipal markets. The Company
continues to strengthen irrigation product offerings through innovative technology such as GPS positioning and
guidance, variable rate irrigation, wireless irrigation management, and smartphone application. The Company�s
principal irrigation manufacturing facilities are located in Lindsay, Nebraska and Hartland, Wisconsin. Internationally,
the Company has production operations in France, Brazil and China as well as distribution operations in South Africa,
Australia and New Zealand. The Company also exports some of its equipment from the U.S. to other international
markets.
Infrastructure Segment � The Company�s infrastructure segment includes the manufacture and marketing of
moveable barriers, specialty barriers, crash cushions and end terminals, road marking and road safety equipment, large
diameter steel tubing, railroad signals and structures, and outsourced manufacturing services. The principal
infrastructure manufacturing facilities are located in Rio Vista, California, Milan, Italy, and Omaha, Nebraska.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements describe various elements of the financial statements and the accounting
policies, estimates, and assumptions applied by management. While actual results could differ from those estimated at
the time of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, management believes that the accounting policies,
assumptions, and estimates applied promote the representational faithfulness, verifiability, neutrality, and transparency
of the accounting information included in the consolidated financial statements.
The significant accounting policies of the Company are as follows:
(1) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All intercompany
balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.
(2) Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior financial statements to conform to the current-year presentation.
(3) Stock Based Compensation
The Company recognizes compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors
based on estimated fair values on the date of grant. The Company uses the straight-line amortization method over the
vesting period of the awards. The Company has historically issued shares upon exercise of stock options or vesting of
restricted stock units or performance stock units from new stock issuances, except for certain non-plan option shares
granted in March 2000 that are issued from Treasury Stock upon exercise. All outstanding non-plan option shares
were exercised in fiscal 2010.
The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense in the Company�s
Consolidated Statement of Operations over the periods during which the employee or director is required to perform a
service in exchange for the award.
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The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model (�Black-Scholes model�) as its valuation method for stock
option awards. Under the Black-Scholes model, the fair value of stock option awards on the date of grant is estimated
using an option-pricing model that is affected by the Company�s stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number
of highly complex and subjective variables. These variables include, but are not limited to the Company�s expected
stock price volatility over the term of the awards and actual and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors.
Restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares and performance stock units issued under the 2010
Long-Term Incentive Plan will have a grant date fair value equal to the fair market value of the underlying stock on
the grant date less present value of expected dividends.
(4) Revenue Recognition
The Company�s basic criteria necessary for revenue recognition are: 1) evidence of a sales arrangement exists, 2)
delivery of goods has occurred, 3) the seller�s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable, and 4) collectability is
reasonably assured. The Company recognizes revenue when these criteria have been met and when title and risk of
loss transfers to the customer. The Company generally has no post delivery obligations to its independent dealers
other than standard warranties. Revenues and gross profits on intercompany sales are eliminated in consolidation. If
an arrangement involves multiple deliverables, the delivered items are considered separate units of accounting if the
items have value on a stand-alone basis and there is objective and reliable evidence of their fair values. Revenues from
the arrangement are allocated to the separate units of accounting based on their objectively determined fair value.
The costs related to revenues are recognized in the same period in which the specific revenues are recorded. Shipping
and handling fees billed to customers are reported in revenue. Shipping and handling costs incurred by the Company
are included in cost of sales. Customer rebates, cash discounts and other sales incentives are recorded as a reduction of
revenues at the time of the original sale. Estimates used in the recognition of operating revenues and cost of operating
revenues include, but are not limited to, estimates for product warranties, product rebates, cash discounts and fair
value of separate units of accounting on multiple deliverables.
(5) Receivables and Allowances
Trade receivables are reported on the balance sheet net of any doubtful accounts. Allowances for doubtful accounts
are maintained in amounts considered to be appropriate in relation to the receivables outstanding based on collection
experience, economic conditions and credit risk quality.
(6) Warranty Costs
The Company�s provision for product warranty reflects management�s best estimate of probable liability under its
product warranties. At the time a sale is recognized, the company records the estimated future warranty costs. The
Company generally determines its total future warranty liability by applying historical claims rate experience to the
amount of equipment that has been sold and is still within the warranty period. In addition, the Company records
provisions for known warranty claims. This provision is periodically adjusted to reflect actual experience.
(7) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents consist of investments with original maturities of three months or less.
(8) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method for the
Company�s Lindsay, Nebraska inventory and two warehouses in Idaho and Texas. Cost is determined by the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method for inventory at the Company�s Omaha, Nebraska warehouse, and at operating locations in
California, Wisconsin, China and Australia. Cost is determined by the weighted average cost method for inventory at
the Company�s other operating locations in Washington State, France, Brazil, Italy, and South Africa. At all locations,
the Company reserves for obsolete, slow moving, and excess inventory by estimating the net realizable value based on
the potential future use of such inventory.
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(9) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant, equipment, and capitalized assets held for lease are stated at cost. The Company capitalizes major
expenditures and charges to operating expenses the cost of current maintenance and repairs. Provisions for
depreciation and amortization have been computed principally on the straight-line method for buildings and
equipment. Rates used for depreciation are based principally on the following expected lives: buildings � 15 to
30 years; temporary structures � 5 years; equipment � 3 to 10 years; leased Barrier Transfer Machines � 8 to 10 years;
leased barriers � 12 years; other � 2 to 20 years and leasehold improvements � shorter of the economic life or term of the
lease. All of the Company�s long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the sum of the expected future cash flows
is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized based upon the difference between the
fair value of the asset and its carrying value. During fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009 no impairment losses were
recognized. The cost and accumulated depreciation relating to assets retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated
from the respective accounts at the time of disposition. The resulting gain or loss is included in operating income in
the consolidated statements of operations.
(10) Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in a business
combination. Acquired intangible assets are recognized separately from goodwill. Goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually at August 31 and whenever triggering events or
changes in circumstances indicate its carrying value may not be recoverable. The Company performs the impairment
analysis at the reporting unit level using a two-step impairment test. Fair value is typically estimated using a
discounted cash flow analysis, which requires the Company to estimate the future cash flows anticipated to be
generated by the particular assets being tested for impairment as well as a discount rate to measure the present value of
the anticipated cash flows. When determining future cash flow estimates, the Company considers historical results
adjusted to reflect current and anticipated operating conditions. Estimating future cash flows requires significant
judgment and assumptions by management in such areas as future economic conditions, industry-specific conditions,
product pricing, and necessary capital expenditures. To the extent that the reporting unit is unable to achieve these
assumptions, impairment losses may emerge.
(11) Income Taxes
Income taxes are accounted for utilizing the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying value of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. These expected
future tax consequences are measured based on currently enacted tax rates. The effect of tax rate changes on deferred
tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income during the period that includes the enactment date.
When the Company has claimed tax benefits that may be challenged by a tax authority, the Company recognizes tax
benefits only for tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by tax authorities. The
amount recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely to be realized
upon settlement. A liability for �unrecognized tax benefits� is recorded for any tax benefits claimed in the Company�s tax
returns that do not meet these recognition and measurement standards.
(12) Net Earnings per Share
Basic net earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted net earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding plus dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive potential common shares
consist of stock options and restricted stock units to the extent that they are not anti-dilutive. Performance stock units
are included in the calculation of dilutive potential common shares once the threshold performance conditions have
been satisfied. At August 31, 2011, the threshold performance conditions for the Company�s outstanding performance
stock units that were granted on November 3, 2008, November 12, 2009 and November 1, 2010 had not been
satisfied, resulting in the exclusion of 98,625 performance stock units from the calculation of diluted net earnings per
share.

Edgar Filing: EDP ELECTRICIDADE DE PORTUGAL SA - Form 6-K

Table of Contents 61



Employee equity share options, nonvested shares and similar equity instruments granted by the Company are treated
as potential common shares outstanding in computing diluted net earnings per share. The Company�s diluted common
shares outstanding reported in each period include the dilutive effect of restricted stock units, in-the-money options,
and performance stock units for which threshold performance conditions have been satisfied and is calculated based
on the average share price for each fiscal period using the treasury stock method. Under the treasury stock method, the
amount the employee must pay for exercising stock options, the amount of compensation cost for future service that
the Company has not yet recognized, and the amount of excess tax benefits that would be recorded in additional
paid-in-capital when exercised are assumed to be used to repurchase shares.
There were 2,062, 476 and 24,204 restricted stock units excluded from the calculation of diluted net earnings per share
since their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive for the years ended August 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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(13) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
(14) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
The Company uses certain financial derivatives to mitigate its exposure to volatility in interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates. All derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at their respective fair values.
The Company uses these derivative instruments only to hedge exposures in the ordinary course of business and does
not invest in derivative instruments for speculative purposes. On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the
Company may elect to designate the derivative as a fair value hedge, a cash flow hedge, or the hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation.
When an election to apply hedge accounting is made, the Company formally documents the hedging relationship and
its risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the
nature of the risk being hedged, how the hedging instrument�s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be
assessed prospectively and retrospectively, and a description of the method of measuring ineffectiveness at the
inception of the hedge.
The Company also formally assesses, both at the hedge�s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivative
that is used in the hedging transaction is highly effective. For those instruments that are designated as a cash flow
hedge and meet certain documentary and analytical requirements to qualify for hedge accounting treatment, changes
in the fair value for the effective portion are reported in other comprehensive income (�OCI�), net of related income tax
effects, and are reclassified to the income statement when the effects of the item being hedged are recognized in the
income statement. Changes in fair value of derivative instruments that qualify as hedges of a net investment in foreign
operations are recorded as a component of accumulated currency translation adjustment in accumulated other
comprehensive income (�AOCI�), net of related income tax effects. Changes in the fair value of undesignated hedges
are recognized currently in earnings. All changes in derivative fair values due to ineffectiveness are recognized
currently in income.
The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it is determined that the derivative is no longer
effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged item, the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or management determines that designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer
appropriate.
In situations in which the Company does not elect hedge accounting or hedge accounting is discontinued and the
derivative is retained, the Company carries or continues to carry the derivative at its fair value on the balance sheet
and recognizes any subsequent changes in its fair value through earnings.
(15) Fair Value Measurements
The Company applies the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. As defined in ASC 820,
fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
ASC 820 establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the transparency of inputs to the
valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. Inputs refers broadly to the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. The categorization within the
valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Financial
assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

� Level 1 � inputs to the valuation techniques are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

� Level 2 � inputs to the valuation techniques are other than quoted prices but are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly or indirectly
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� Level 3 � inputs to the valuation techniques are unobservable for the assets or liabilities
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The following table presents the Company�s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value based upon the level
within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall, as of August 31, 2011:

$ in thousands Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 108,167 $ � $ � $ 108,167
Derivative Liabilities � (634) � (634)
The following table presents the Company�s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value based upon the level
within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall, as of August 31, 2010:

$ in thousands Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 83,418 $ � $ � $ 83,418
Derivative Assets � 16 � 16
Derivative Liabilities � (987) � (987)
The carrying amount of long-term debt (including current portion) was $8.6 million and $12.9 million as of
August 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The fair value of this debt at August 31, 2011 and 2010, was estimated at
$8.5 million and $12.6 million, respectively. Fair value of long-term debt (including current portion) is estimated by
discounting the future estimated cash flows of each instrument at current market interest rates for similar debt
instruments of comparable maturities and credit quality.
(16) Treasury Stock
When the Company repurchases its outstanding stock, it records the repurchased shares at cost as a reduction to
shareholders� equity. The weighted average cost method is utilized for share re-issuances. The difference between the
cost and the re-issuance price is charged or credited to a �capital in excess of stated value � treasury stock� account to the
extent that there is a sufficient balance to absorb the charge. If the treasury stock is sold for an amount less than its
cost and there is not a sufficient balance in the capital in excess of stated value � treasury stock account, the excess is
charged to retained earnings.
(17) Contingencies
The Company�s accounting for contingencies covers a variety of business activities including contingencies for legal
exposures and environmental exposures. The Company accrues these contingencies when its assessments indicate that
it is probable that a liability has been incurred and an amount can be reasonably estimated. The Company�s estimates
are based on currently available facts and its estimates of the ultimate outcome or resolution. Actual results may differ
from the Company�s estimates resulting in an impact, positive or negative, on earnings.
(18) Translation of Foreign Currency
The Company�s portion of the assets and liabilities related to foreign investments are translated into U.S. dollars at the
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated at the average rates of
exchange prevailing during the year. Unrealized gains or losses are reflected within common shareholders� equity as
accumulated other comprehensive income or loss.
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B. ACQUISITIONS
The Company acquires businesses synergistic to the Company�s core irrigation and infrastructure businesses and to
align with its strategic intent with respect to growth markets and adjacent product lines or technologies. The Company
accounts for business combinations in accordance with ASC 805 � Business Combinations, which requires the
recognition of the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, goodwill, and any noncontrolling interest in the
acquiree. In addition, the Company expenses all acquisition-related costs in the period in which the costs are incurred
and the services received. For fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009, the acquisition-related expenses are not included because
the impact on the Company�s consolidated financial statements was not considered to be material.
IRZ Consulting, LLC
On August 26, 2011, the Company completed the acquisition of IRZ Consulting, LLC (�IRZ�) based in Pasco,
Washington and Portland, Oregon. The IRZ business is involved in irrigation engineering, field monitoring, and
broadband internet services for rural areas. Total consideration paid was $4.9 million which was financed with cash on
hand. The allocation of purchase price for IRZ is considered preliminary, largely with respect to certain acquired
intangible assets and other long-term liabilities. Goodwill recorded in connection with this acquisition is deductible
for income tax purposes.
WMC Technology Limited
On November 3, 2010, the Company completed the acquisition of certain assets of WMC Technology Limited
(�WMC�) based in Feilding, New Zealand. The assets acquired primarily relate to technology that has enhanced the
Company�s irrigation product offerings. Total consideration paid was $1.3 million which was financed with cash on
hand. The fair value assigned to the assets was finalized in the second quarter of the Company�s 2011 fiscal year.
Goodwill recorded in connection with this acquisition is not deductible for income tax purposes.
The total purchase price for IRZ and WMC has been allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on fair value assessments. The Company�s allocation of purchase price for these acquisitions
consisted of current assets of $0.9 million, fixed assets of $0.6 million, finite-lived intangible assets of $1.6 million,
indefinite-lived intangible assets of $1.0 million, goodwill of $2.2 million, other long-term assets of $1.1 million,
current liabilities of $0.4 million, and long-term liabilities of $0.8 million. Goodwill resulting from business
combinations is largely attributable to the existing workforce and historical and projected profitability of the acquired
businesses. The goodwill associated with WMC and IRZ are included in the goodwill of the Company�s irrigation
segment. Pro forma information related to acquisitions was not included because the impact on the Company�s
consolidated financial statements was not considered to be material.
Digitec, Inc.
On August 31, 2010, the Company completed the acquisition of all outstanding shares of stock of Digitec, Inc.,
(�Digitec�) based in Milford, Nebraska. Digitec is an electronics research, development and manufacturing company.
The addition of Digitec enhances the Company�s capabilities in providing electronic design and integration. Total
consideration paid to the selling shareholders was $6.4 million which was financed with cash on hand. The purchase
price has been allocated to the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities assumed based on fair value assessments.
The Company�s allocation of purchase price consisted of current assets of $1.1 million (including $0.1 million of
cash), fixed assets of $0.8 million, intangible assets of $1.5 million, goodwill of $4.4 million, current liabilities of
$0.5 million and long-term liabilities of $0.9 million. Goodwill related to the acquisition of Digitec primarily relates to
intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition, including the experience and knowledge of Digitec
management, its assembled workforce, and its intellectual capital and specialization within the Irrigation industry.
Goodwill recorded in connection with this acquisition is non-deductible for income tax purposes. Proforma data is not
presented for this acquisition, as it was not considered material.
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C. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Comprehensive income (loss) was as follows:

For the years ended August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010 2009
Net Income $ 36,802 $ 24,862 $ 13,823

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Defined benefit pension plan 69 (50) (501)
Cash flow hedges 319 1,201 (145)
Foreign currency translation, net of hedging activities 4,719 (2,791) (1,452)

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax expense
(benefit) of $440, $1,104 and ($81) 5,107 (1,640) (2,098)

Total other comprehensive income $ 41,909 $ 23,222 $ 11,725

Accumulated other comprehensive income is included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets in the
shareholders� equity section, and consists of the following components:

For the years ended
August 31,

$ in thousands 2011 2010
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Defined benefit pension plan, net of tax of $1,306 and $1,348 (2,139) (2,208)
Cash flow hedges, net of tax of $155 and $348 (253) (572)
Foreign currency translation, net of hedging activities, net of tax of $1,573 and
$1,368 8,854 4,135

Total accumulated other comprehensive income $ 6,462 $ 1,355

D. INCOME TAXES
For financial reporting purposes earnings before income taxes include the following components:

For the years ended August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010 2009
United States $ 53,879 $ 34,165 $ 18,385
Foreign 2,635 2,617 2,154

$ 56,514 $ 36,782 $ 20,539

Significant components of the income tax provision are as follows:

For the years ended August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010 2009
Current:
Federal $ 18,705 $ 11,077 $ 6,479
State 1,309 770 489
Foreign 2,526 1,573 974
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Total current 22,540 13,420 7,942

Deferred:
Federal (1,484) 501 (938)
State (29) (1,364) (52)
Foreign (1,315) (637) (236)

Total deferred (2,828) (1,500) (1,226)

Total income tax provision $ 19,712 $ 11,920 $ 6,716
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Total income tax provision resulted in effective tax rates differing from that of the statutory United States Federal
income tax rates. The reasons for these differences are:

For the years ended August 31,
2011 2010 2009

$ in thousands Amount % Amount % Amount %
U.S. statutory rate $ 19,780 35.0 $ 12,874 35.0 $ 7,189 35.0
State and local taxes, net of
federal tax benefit 889 1.6 540 1.5 275 1.3
State tax credits � � (1,393) (3.8) � �
Foreign tax rate differences (257) (0.5) (122) (0.3) (302) (1.5)
Domestic production activities
deduction (1,301) (2.3) (608) (1.7) (385) (1.9)
R&D, Phone, and Fuel tax
credits (239) (0.4) (28) (0.1) (96) (0.5)
Other 840 1.5 657 1.8 35 0.3

Effective rate $ 19,712 34.9 $ 11,920 32.4 $ 6,716 32.7

In fiscal 2010, the Company recognized investment tax credits from the state of Nebraska�s economic development
program, the Nebraska Advantage Act. These credits, which expire in fiscal 2018, reduced income tax expense by
$1.4 million. The Company uses the deferral method of accounting for its investment tax credits.
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of
the Company�s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010
Deferred tax assets:
Deferred rental revenue $ 1,233 $ 2,148
Employee benefits liability 1,305 1,273
Net operating loss carryforwards 74 137
Defined benefit pension plan 1,306 1,348
Share-based compensation 1,614 1,515
State tax credits 802 934
Inventory 789 744
Warranty 1,268 592
Vacation 200 765
Accrued expenses and allowances 5,039 3,731

Total deferred tax assets $ 13,630 $ 13,187

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets (7,088) (6,972)
Property, plant and equipment (9,054) (8,760)
Inventory (113) (130)
Other (1,058) (1,273)
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Total deferred tax liabilities (17,313) (17,135)

Net deferred tax liabilities $ (3,683) $ (3,948)

In assessing the ability to realize deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable
income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and
projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management
believes it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible differences.
Accordingly, a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets at August 31, 2011 and 2010 has not been established.
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The Company does not intend to repatriate earnings of its non-U.S. subsidiaries and accordingly, has not provided a
U.S. deferred income tax liability for cumulative earnings on non-U.S. affiliates and associated companies that have
been reinvested indefinitely. The Company continues to analyze the potential tax impact should it elect to repatriate
non-U.S. earnings and would recognize a deferred income tax liability if the Company were to determine that such
earnings are no longer indefinitely reinvested.
The Company recognizes tax benefits only for tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained upon
examination by tax authorities. The amount recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater
than 50 percent likely to be realized upon settlement. Unrecognized tax benefits are tax benefits claimed in the
Company�s tax returns that do not meet these recognition and measurement standards.
A reconciliation of changes in pre-tax unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

$ in thousands 2011 2010
Unrecognized Tax Benefits at September 1 $ 1,112 $ 1,464
Increases for positions taken in current year 78 42
Increases for positions taken in prior years 448 63
Decreases for positions taken in current year � �
Decreases for positions taken in prior years � �
Settlements with taxing authorities � �
Reduction resulting from lapse of applicable statute of limitations (87) (460)
Other increases (decreases) 14 3

Unrecognized Tax Benefits at August 31 $ 1,565 $ 1,112

The net amount of unrecognized tax benefits at August 31, 2011 and 2010 that, if recognized, would impact the
Company�s effective tax rate was $1.6 million and $1.1 million, respectively. Recognition of these tax benefits would
have a favorable impact on the Company�s effective tax rate.
The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.
Total accrued pre-tax liabilities for interest and penalties included in the unrecognized tax benefits liability were
$0.5 million and $0.4 million for the years ended August 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various state and foreign jurisdictions. The
U.S. Internal Revenue Service has closed examination of the Company�s income tax returns through 2006. In addition,
with regard to a number of state and foreign tax jurisdictions, the Company is no longer subject to examination by tax
authorities for years prior to 2006.
While it is expected that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change in the next twelve months as a result of
the expiration of statutes of limitations, the Company does not expect this change to have a significant impact on its
results of operations or financial position.
The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the �Jobs Act�)
On October 22, 2004, the Jobs Act was enacted, which created a �manufacturing deduction� that allows for a deduction
from taxable income of up to 9% of �qualified production activities income� not to exceed taxable income. The
deduction is phased in over a nine-year period, with the eligible percentage increasing from 3% in 2005 to 9% in 2010
and thereafter. The Company reported a $3.7 million, $1.7 million and $1.1 million manufacturing deduction for fiscal
years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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E. INVENTORIES

August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010
Inventory:
FIFO inventory $ 22,614 $ 19,218
LIFO reserves (7,178) (6,263)

LIFO inventory 15,436 12,955

Weighted average inventory 20,848 15,854
Other FIFO inventory 15,407 18,532
Obsolescence reserve (2,167) (2,045)

Total inventories $ 49,524 $ 45,296

The estimated percentage distribution between major classes of inventory before reserves is as follows:

August 31,
2011 2010

Raw materials 14% 12%
Work in process 8% 8%
Finished goods and purchased parts 78% 80%
F. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

August, 31
$ in thousands 2011 2010
Operating property, plant and equipment:
Land $ 2,859 $ 2,757
Buildings 29,372 28,294
Equipment 71,942 66,754
Other 5,521 3,830

Total operating property, plant and equipment 109,694 101,635
Accumulated depreciation (65,083) (58,429)

Total operating property, plant and equipment, net $ 44,611 $ 43,206

Property held for lease:
Machines 3,907 4,360
Barriers 18,198 16,215

Total property held for lease $ 22,105 $ 20,575
Accumulated depreciation (8,251) (6,135)

Total property held for lease, net $ 13,854 $ 14,440

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 58,465 $ 57,646
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Depreciation expense was $9.0 million, $8.1 million and $7.6 million for the years ended August 31, 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively.
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G. OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010
Other noncurrent assets:
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies $ 2,414 $ 2,335
Split dollar life insurance 929 929
Deferred income taxes 269 145
Other 1,792 1,305

Total noncurrent assets $ 5,404 $ 4,714

H. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment for the year ended August 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

$ in thousands Irrigation Infrastructure Total
Balance as of September 1, 2009 $ 6,978 $ 17,196 $ 24,174
Acquisition of Digitec 3,913 � 3,913
Foreign currency translation (10) (682) (692)

Balance as of August 31, 2010 10,881 16,514 27,395
Acquisition of IRZ and WMC 2,182 � 2,182
Finalization of Digitec Acquisition 490 � 490
Foreign currency translation 129 747 876

Balance as of August 31, 2011 $ 13,682 $ 17,261 $ 30,943

Other Intangible Assets
The components of the Company�s identifiable intangible assets at August 31, 2011 and 2010 are included in the table
below.

August 31,
2011 2010

Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

$ in thousands Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Amortizable Intangible Assets:
Patents $ 26,316 $ (8,661) $ 24,520 $ (6,479)
Customer relationships 6,371 (2,768) 5,813 (2,112)
Non-compete agreements 852 (320) 543 (196)
Other 171 (41) 101 (56)
Unamortizable Intangible Assets:
Tradenames 6,719 � 5,581 �

Total $ 40,429 $ (11,790) $ 36,558 $ (8,843)

Amortization expense for amortizable intangible assets was $2.8 million, $2.6 million and $2.8 million for 2011,
2010, and 2009, respectively. Amortizable intangible assets are being amortized using the straight-line method over an
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Future estimated amortization of intangible assets for the next five years is as follows:

Fiscal Years $ in thousands
2012 $ 2,909
2013 2,827
2014 2,760
2015 2,493
2016 2,180
The Company updated its impairment evaluation of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at
August 31, 2011. While the fair value of most of the Company�s reporting units exceeded the respective carrying
values by a substantial margin, one international reporting unit, which has goodwill of $6.1 million, had an estimated
fair value less than 10% in excess of carrying value. Accordingly, no impairment losses were indicated as a result of
the annual impairment testing for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009. The Company does not include a roll forward of
impairment losses because the Company has never had an impairment loss.
I. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010
Other current liabilities:
Payroll, vacation and retirement plans $ 13,364 $ 12,192
Deferred revenue 6,718 5,813
Warranty 3,651 1,862
Customer deposits 3,560 1,454
Dealer related liabilities 3,198 1,650
International freight accrual 1,780 173
Environmental remediation liability 1,540 900
Workers compensation and product liability 1,127 1,148
Taxes, other than income 1,009 2,156
Derivative liability 485 503
Income tax liability 460 2,829
Other 5,988 5,615

Total other current liabilities $ 42,880 $ 36,295

J. CREDIT ARRANGEMENTS
Euro Line of Credit
The Company�s wholly-owned European subsidiary, Lindsay Europe, has an unsecured revolving line of credit with
Societe Generale, a European commercial bank, under which it could borrow for working capital purposes up to
2.3 million Euros, which equates to approximately USD $3.3 million as of August 31, 2011 (the �Euro Line of Credit�).
There were no borrowings outstanding on this credit agreement at August 31, 2011 or 2010. Under the terms of the
Euro line of Credit, borrowings, if any, bear interest at a floating rate in effect from time to time designated by the
commercial bank as Euro Interbank Offered Rate plus 110 basis points, (2.13% at August 31, 2011). Unpaid principal
and interest is due by January 31, 2012, which is the termination date of the Euro Line of Credit. The Company�s
management expects to obtain a similar line of credit prior to termination.
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BSI Term Note
The Company entered into an unsecured $30.0 million Term Note and Credit Agreement, effective June 1, 2006, with
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (the �BSI Term Note�) to partially finance the acquisition of BSI. Borrowings under the BSI
Term Note originally bore interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 50 basis points. The Company has fixed the interest
rate at 6.05 percent through an interest rate swap as described in Note K, Financial Derivatives. Principal is repaid
quarterly in equal payments of $1.1 million over a seven year period that began in September, 2006. The BSI term
note is due in June of 2013.
Snoline Term Note
The Company�s wholly-owned Italian subsidiary, Snoline S.P.A. (�Snoline�) had an unsecured $13.2 million seven-year
Term Note and Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. that was effective on December 27, 2006 (the �Snoline
Term Note�). On May 17, 2010, the Company repaid the $7.1 million outstanding balance on the Snoline Term Note in
its entirety.
Revolving Credit Agreement
The Company has an unsecured $30.0 million Revolving Credit Note and Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A. (the �Revolving Credit Agreement�). The Company entered into the Second Amendment to the Revolving Credit
Agreement, effective January 23, 2011 in order to extend the Revolving Credit Agreement�s termination date from
January 23, 2012 to January 23, 2014. The Revolving Credit Agreement, as amended, is hereinafter referred to as the
�Amended Revolving Credit Agreement.� The borrowings from the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement will
primarily be used for working capital purposes and funding acquisitions. At August 31, 2011 and 2010, there was no
outstanding balance on the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement.
Borrowings under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 105 basis
points, subject to adjustment as set forth in the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement. Interest is paid on a monthly to
quarterly basis depending on loan type. The Company also pays an annual commitment fee of 0.25% on the unused
portion of the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement. Unpaid principal and interest is due by January 23, 2014, which
is the termination date of the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement.
The BSI Term Note and the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement (collectively, the �Notes�) each contain the same
covenants, including certain covenants relating to the Company�s financial condition. These include maintaining a
funded debt to EBITDA ratio, a fixed charge coverage ratio, a current ratio and a tangible net worth requirement (all
as defined in the Notes) at specified levels. Upon the occurrence of any event of default of these covenants specified
in the Notes, including a change in control of the Company (as defined in the Notes), all amounts due thereunder may
be declared to be immediately due and payable. At August 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company was in compliance with
all loan covenants.
Long-term debt consists of the following:

August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010
BSI Term Note $ 8,571 $ 12,857
Less current portion (4,286) (4,286)

Total long-term debt $ 4,285 $ 8,571

Interest expense was $0.8 million, $1.6 million and $2.0 million for the years ended August 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.
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Principal payments due on the term note are as follows:

Due within:
1 year $ 4,286
2 years 4,285
3 years �

$ 8,571

K. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES
Financial derivatives consist of the following:

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments
Asset (Liability) Derivatives

August 31, August 31,
$ in thousands Balance Sheet Location 2011 2010
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:
Foreign currency forward contracts Other current liabilities $ (218) $ (66)
Interest rate swap Other current liabilities (267) (437)

Interest rate swap
Other noncurrent
liabilities

(149) (484)

Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments $ (634) $ (987)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
under SFAS No. 133:
Foreign currency forward contracts Other current liabilities $ � $ 16

In addition, accumulated other comprehensive income included gains, net of related income tax effects of $0.5 million
and $1.0 million at August 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to derivative contracts designated as hedging
instruments.
Cash Flow Hedging Relationships
In order to reduce interest rate risk on the BSI Term Note, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement
with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. that is designed to convert the variable interest rate on the entire amount of this
borrowing to a fixed rate of 6.05% per annum. Under the terms of the interest rate swap, the Company receives
variable interest rate payments and makes fixed interest rate payments on an amount equal to the outstanding balance
of the BSI Term Note, thereby creating the equivalent of fixed-rate debt (see Note J, Credit Arrangements). Changes
in the fair value of the interest rate swap designated as the hedging instrument that effectively offset the variability of
cash flows associated with the variable-rate, long-term debt obligation are reported in AOCI, net of related income tax
effects.
Similarly, the Company entered into a cross currency swap transaction with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A fixing the
conversion rate of Euros to U.S. dollars for the Snoline Term Note. In addition, the variable interest rate was
converted to a fixed rate. Changes in the fair value of the cross currency swap designated as a hedging instrument that
effectively offset the hedged risks were reported in AOCI, net of related income tax effects. On May 17, 2010, in
conjunction with repaying the Snoline Term Note, the Company exited the cross currency swap transaction with a
zero fair value.
In order to reduce exposures related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, the Company, at times, may enter
into forward exchange or option contracts for transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional
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currency for certain of its operations. This activity primarily relates to economically hedging against foreign currency
risk in purchasing inventory, sales of finished goods, and future settlement of foreign denominated assets and
liabilities. Changes in fair value of the forward exchange contracts or option contracts designated as hedging
instruments that effectively offset the hedged risks are reported in AOCI, net of related income tax effects. At
August 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had forward exchange contracts with cash flow hedging relationships
totaling less than $0.1 million included in other current liabilities.
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Amount of Gain/(Loss) Recognized in OCI
$ in thousands For the years ended August 31,

2011 2010 2009
Interest rate swap $ 312 $ 289 $ (2)
Cross currency swap � 922 (143)
Foreign currency forward contracts 7 (10) �

Total1 $ 319 $ 1,201 $ (145)

1 Net of tax expense (benefit) of $193, $519 and ($54) for the years ended August 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Location of Gain/(Loss)

Reclassified from AOCI
Amount of Gain (Loss) Reclassified

from
$ in thousands into Income AOCI into Income

For the years ended August 31,
2011 2010 2009

Interest rate swap Interest Expense $ (557) $ (850) $ (974)
Cross currency swap Interest Expense � (884) (346)
Foreign currency forward contracts Revenue (76) (8) �

$ (633) $ (1,742) $ (1,320)

Location of Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in Income Gain/(Loss) Recognized in Income on

$ in thousands (Ineffectiveness) Derivatives (Ineffectiveness)
For the years ended August 31,
2011 2010 2009

Interest rate swap Other income (expense) $ 4 $ (52) $ 99
Cross currency swap Other income (expense) � � �
Foreign currency forward contracts Other income (expense) � � �

$ 4 $ (52) $ 99

Net Investment Hedging Relationships
In order to reduce translation exposure resulting from translating the financial statements of its international
subsidiaries into U.S. dollars, the Company, at times, utilizes Euro foreign currency forward contracts to hedge a
portion of its Euro net investment exposure in its foreign operations. These foreign currency forward contracts qualify
as a hedge of net investments in foreign operations. Changes in fair value of the net investment hedge contracts are
reported in OCI as part of the currency translation adjustment, net of tax.

Amount of Gain/(Loss) Recognized in OCI
on Derivatives

For the years ended August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010 2009
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Foreign currency forward contracts1 $ (800) $ 296 $ 455

(1) Net of tax (benefit) expense of ($489), $181 and $279 for the years ended August 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.
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During fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company settled Euro foreign currency forward contracts resulting in after-tax
net (losses) gains of ($0.7 million), $0.3 million and $0.5 million, respectively, which were included in OCI as part of
a currency translation adjustment. There were no amounts recorded in the consolidated statement of operations related
to ineffectiveness of Euro foreign currency forward contracts for the years ended August 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.
Accumulated currency translation adjustment in AOCI at August 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 reflected after-tax gains of
$0.9 million, $1.6 million and $1.2 million, net of related income tax effects of $0.5 million, $0.9 million and
$0.8 million, respectively, related to settled foreign currency forward contracts.
At August 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had outstanding Euro foreign currency forward contracts to sell
10.0 million Euro and 5.0 million Euro, respectively, at fixed prices to settle during the next fiscal quarter following
each period. The Company�s foreign currency forward contracts qualify as hedges of a net investment in foreign
operations.
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments
In order to reduce exposures related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, the Company, at times, may enter
into forward exchange or option contracts for transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency for certain of the Company�s operations. This activity primarily relates to economically hedging against
foreign currency risk in purchasing inventory, sales of finished goods, and future settlement of foreign denominated
assets and liabilities. The Company may choose whether or not to designate these contracts as hedges. For those
contracts not designated, changes in fair value are recognized currently in the income statement. At August 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, the Company had no material undesignated hedges outstanding.
L. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
In 1992, the Company entered into a consent decree with the Environmental Protection Agency of the United States
Government (the �EPA�) in which the Company committed to remediate environmental contamination of the
groundwater that was discovered in 1982 through 1990 at and adjacent to its Lindsay, Nebraska facility (the �site�). The
site was added to the EPA�s list of priority superfund sites in 1989. Between 1993 and 1995, remediation plans for the
site were approved by the EPA and fully implemented by the Company. Since 1998, the primary remaining
contamination at the site has been the presence of volatile organic chemicals in the groundwater. The current
remediation process consists of drilling wells into the aquifer and pumping water to the surface to allow these
contaminants to be removed by aeration. In 2008, the Company and the EPA conducted a periodic five-year review of
the status of the remediation of the contamination of the site. In response to the review, the Company and its
environmental consultants have developed a remedial action work plan, under which the Company continues to work
with the EPA to define and implement steps to better contain and remediate the remaining contamination.
The Company accrues the anticipated cost of remediation when the obligation is probable and can be reasonably
estimated. Due to the current stage of discussions with the EPA and the uncertainty of the remediation actions that
may be required, the Company believes that meaningful estimates of costs or range of costs cannot currently be made
for all future remediation requirements. The Company is scheduled to meet with the EPA in fiscal 2012 to discuss
options that could result in more permanent or more clearly defined remediation of the source areas of contamination
at the site.
During fiscal 2011, the Company accrued incremental costs of $1.3 million for additional environmental monitoring
and remediation in connection with the current ongoing remedial action work plan. The undiscounted amounts
accrued in balance sheet liabilities related to the remediation actions were $1.5 million and $0.9 million at August 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. Although the Company has accrued all reasonably estimable costs of completing the
actions defined in the current ongoing work plan agreed to between the Company and the EPA, it is expected that
additional testing and environmental monitoring and remediation will be required in the near future as part of the
Company�s ongoing discussions with the EPA regarding the development and implementation of the remedial action
work plan, which could result in the recognition of additional related expenses. While these additional expenses could
significantly exceed the amount accrued as of August 31, 2011 and could be material to the operating results of any
fiscal quarter or fiscal year, the Company does not expect that such additional expenses would have a material adverse
effect on the liquidity or financial condition of the Company.
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In the ordinary course of its business operations, the Company is involved, from time to time, in commercial
litigation, employment disputes, administrative proceedings, and other legal proceedings. No such current
proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, are expected to have a material effect on the business or financial
condition of the Company.
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The Company leases land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and computer equipment under various noncancelable
operating lease agreements. At August 31, 2011, future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating
leases were as follows:

Fiscal Years $ in thousands
2012 $ 2,295
2013 1,977
2014 1,148
2015 957
2016 888
Thereafter 2,453

$ 9,718

Lease expense was $3.4 million, $2.8 million and $2.8 million for the years ended August 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009,
respectively.
M. RETIREMENT PLANS
The Company has a defined contribution profit-sharing plan covering substantially all of its full-time U.S. employees.
Participants may voluntarily contribute a percentage of compensation, but not in excess of the maximum allowed
under the Internal Revenue Code. The plan provides for a matching contribution by the Company. The Company�s
total contributions charged to expense under this plan were $0.5 million, $0.6 million and $0.6 million for the years
ended August 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
A supplementary non-qualified, non-funded retirement plan for six former executives is also maintained. Plan benefits
are based on the executive�s average total compensation during the three highest compensation years of employment.
This unfunded supplemental retirement plan is not subject to the minimum funding requirements of ERISA. The
Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain executives named in this supplemental retirement plan to
provide funding for this liability.
As of August 31, 2011 and 2010, the funded status of the supplemental retirement plan was recorded in the
consolidated balance sheets. The Company utilizes an August 31 measurement date for plan obligations related to the
supplemental retirement plan. As this is an unfunded retirement plan, the funded status is equal to the benefit
obligation. The funded status of the plan and the net amount recognized in the accompanying balance sheets as of
August 31 is as follows:

August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 6,957 $ 6,964
Interest cost 334 351
Actuarial loss 53 259
Benefits paid (557) (617)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 6,787 $ 6,957

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position consist of:

August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010
Other current liabilities $ 557 $ 557
Pension benefit liabilities 6,230 6,400
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Net amount recognized $ 6,787 $ 6,957
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The before-tax amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of August 31 consists of:

August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010
Net actuarial loss $ (3,445) $ (3,556)
Transition obligation � �

Total $ (3,445) $ (3,556)

The assumptions used for the determination of the liability as of years ended:

August 31,
2011 2010

Discount rate 5.00% 5.00%
Assumed rates of compensation increases N/A N/A
Rate of return on underlying 401(k) investments N/A N/A
The assumptions used to determine benefit obligations and costs are selected based on current and expected market
conditions. The discount rate is based on a hypothetical portfolio of long-term corporate bonds with cash flows
approximating the timing of expected benefit payments.
The components of the net periodic benefit cost for the supplemental retirement plan for the years ended August 31
are as follows:

For the years ended August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010 2009
Service cost $ � $ � $ �
Interest cost 334 351 347
Net amortization and deferral 164 178 176

Total $ 498 $ 529 $ 523

The estimated actuarial loss for the supplemental retirement plan that will be amortized, on a pre-tax basis, from
accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost during fiscal 2012 will be $166.
The assumptions used for the determination of the net periodic benefit cost were:

For the years ended August 31,
2011 2010 2009

Discount rate 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Assumed rates of compensation N/A N/A 3.50%
The Company�s future annual contributions to the supplemental retirement plan will be equal to expected net benefit
payments since the plan is unfunded. The following net benefit payments are expected to be paid:

Fiscal Years $ in thousands
2012 557
2013 542
2014 537
2015 532
2016 526
Thereafter 4,093
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N. WARRANTIES
Product Warranties
The Company generally warrants its products against certain manufacturing and other defects. These product
warranties are provided for specific periods and/or usage of the product. The accrued product warranty costs are for a
combination of specifically identified items and other incurred, but not identified, items based primarily on historical
experience of actual warranty claims. This reserve is classified within other current liabilities.
The following tables provide the changes in the Company�s product warranties:

For the years ended
August 31,

$ in thousands 2011 2010
Warranties:
Product warranty accrual balance, beginning of period $ 1,862 $ 1,736
Liabilities accrued for warranties during the period 4,865 3,820
Warranty claims paid during the period (3,076) (3,694)

Product warranty accrual balance, end of period $ 3,651 $ 1,862

Warranty costs were $4.9 million, $3.8 million, and $3.6 million for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively.
O. INDUSTRY SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Company manages its business activities in two reportable segments:
Irrigation: This reporting segment includes the manufacture and marketing of center pivot, lateral move, and hose reel
irrigation systems as well as various water pumping stations and controls. The irrigation reporting segment consists of
twelve operating segments that have similar economic characteristics and meet the aggregation criteria, including
similar products, production processes, type or class of customer and methods for distribution.
Infrastructure: This reporting segment includes the manufacture and marketing of moveable barriers, specialty barriers
and crash cushions; providing outsource manufacturing services and the manufacturing and selling of large diameter
steel tubing and railroad signals and structures. The infrastructure reporting segment consists of three operating
segments that have similar economic characteristics and meet the aggregation criteria.
The accounting policies of the two reportable segments are described in the �Accounting Policies� section of Note A.
The Company evaluates the performance of its reportable segments based on segment sales, gross profit, and
operating income, with operating income for segment purposes excluding unallocated corporate general and
administrative expenses, interest income, interest expense, other income and expenses, and income taxes. Operating
income for segment purposes does include general and administrative expenses, selling expenses, engineering and
research expenses and other overhead charges directly attributable to the segment. There are no inter-reporting
segment sales.
The Company has no single major customer representing 10% or more of its total revenues during fiscal 2011, 2010,
or 2009.
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Summarized financial information concerning the Company�s reportable segments is shown in the following tables:

$ in thousands 2011 2010 2009
Operating revenues:
Irrigation $ 369,930 $ 258,666 $ 255,507
Infrastructure 108,960 99,774 80,721

Total operating revenues $ 478,890 $ 358,440 $ 336,228

Operating income:
Irrigation $ 59,703 $ 40,869 $ 35,504
Infrastructure 11,901 11,083 (36)

Segment operating income $ 71,604 $ 51,952 $ 35,468
Unallocated general and administrative expenses (15,018) (14,110) (13,051)
Interest and other income (expense), net (72) (1,060) (1,878)

Earnings before income taxes $ 56,514 $ 36,782 $ 20,539

Total Capital Expenditures:
Irrigation $ 5,490 $ 3,125 $ 5,681
Infrastructure 2,915 2,659 4,819

$ 8,405 $ 5,784 $ 10,500

Total Depreciation and Amortization:
Irrigation $ 6,009 $ 4,597 $ 4,191
Infrastructure 5,725 6,113 6,251

$ 11,734 $ 10,710 $ 10,442

Total Assets:
Irrigation $ 267,275 $ 206,885 $ 186,558
Infrastructure 113,869 118,596 121,339

$ 381,144 $ 325,481 $ 307,897

Summarized financial information concerning the Company�s geographical areas is shown in the following tables. No
individual foreign country�s operating revenues were material for separate disclosure purposes.

For the years ended August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010 2009

% of
Total

% of
Total

% of
Total

Revenues Revenues Revenues Revenues Revenues Revenues
United States $ 307,694 64 $ 204,465 57 $ 200,625 60
International 171,196 36 153,975 43 135,603 40
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Total Revenues $ 478,890 100 $ 358,440 100 $ 336,228 100

For the years ended August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010 2009

% of Total % of Total % of Total
Long-Lived Long-Lived Long-Lived Long-Lived Long-Lived Long-Lived
Assets Assets Assets Assets Assets Assets

United States $ 91,564 78 $ 89,935 80 $ 88,335 78
Italy 19,578 16 17,810 16 21,429 19
International 6,905 6 5,011 4 3,151 3

Total Long-Lived Assets $ 118,047 100 $ 112,756 100 $ 112,915 100
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P. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION
Share Based Compensation Program
Share based compensation is designed to reward employees for their long-term contributions to the Company and
provide incentives for them to remain with the Company. The number and frequency of share grants are based on
competitive practices, operating results of the Company, and individual performance. As of August 31, 2011, the
Company�s share-based compensation plan was the 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the �2010 Plan�). The 2010 Plan
was approved by the stockholders of the Company, and became effective on January 25, 2010, and replaced the
Company�s 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan. At August 31, 2011 the Company had share based awards outstanding
under its 2001, 2006 and 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plans.
The 2010 Plan provides for awards of stock options, restricted shares, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights,
performance shares and performance stock units to employees and non-employee directors of the Company. The
maximum number of shares as to which stock awards may be granted under the 2010 Plan is 435,000 shares,
exclusive of any forfeitures from the 2001 and 2006 Long Term Incentive Plans. At August 31, 2011, 357,425 shares
of common stock (including forfeitures from prior plans) remained available for issuance under the 2010 Plan. All
stock awards will be counted against the 2010 Plan in a 1 to 1 ratio. If options, restricted stock units or performance
stock units awarded under the 2006 Plan or the 2001 Plan terminate without being fully vested or exercised, those
shares will be available again for grant under the 2010 Plan. The 2010 Plan also limits the total awards that may be
made to any individual. Any options granted under the 2010 Plan would have an exercise price equal to the fair
market value of the underlying stock on the grant date and expire no later than ten years from the grant date. The
restricted stock units granted to employees and directors under the 2010 Plan have a grant date fair value equal to the
fair market value of the underlying stock on the grant date less present value of expected dividends. The restricted
stock units granted to employees vest over a three-year period at approximately 33% per year. The restricted stock
units granted to non-employee directors generally vest over a nine-month period. The performance stock units granted
to employees under the 2010 Plan have a grant date fair value equal to the fair market value of the underlying stock on
the grant date less present value of expected dividends. The performance stock units granted to employees cliff vest
after a three-year period and a specified number of shares of common stock will be awarded under the terms of the
performance stock units, if performance measures relating to three-year average revenue growth and a three-year
average return on net assets are achieved.
Share Based Compensation Information
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of and for the years ended August 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009:

Average
Remaining

Average Contractual Aggregate
Number of Exercise Term Intrinsic
Shares Price (years) Value (�000s)

Outstanding at August 31, 2009 370,099 $ 21.60 3.9 $ 7,370
Granted � �
Exercised (78,324) $ 15.50 $ 2,042
Forfeitures (150) $ 24.29

Outstanding at August 31, 2010 291,625 $ 23.23 3.7 $ 3,977

Granted � �
Exercised (153,700) $ 23.28 $ 7,001
Forfeitures (1,350) $ 24.33

Outstanding at August 31, 2011 136,575 $ 23.17 3.1 $ 5,331
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There were 6,750, 27,115 and 109,450 outstanding stock options that vested during the fiscal years ended August 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The intrinsic value of options exercised for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 was $7.0 million, $2.0 million and $3.3 million, respectively.
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Cash received from option exercises for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $2.7 million,
$0.5 million and $1.4 million, respectively. The actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from option exercises
totaled $2.7 million, $0.2 million and $0.2 million for fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The following table summarizes information about restricted stock units as of and for the years ended August 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009:

Weighted-
Average

Number of Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value

Restricted stock units at August 31, 2009 76,727 $ 41.52
Granted 45,583 34.17
Vested (41,376) 39.25
Forfeited (5,841) 35.38

Restricted stock units at August 31, 2010 75,093 $ 38.61

Granted 40,699 55.27
Vested (40,337) 43.91
Forfeited (3,629) 51.17

Restricted stock units at August 31, 2011 71,826 $ 47.99

Restricted stock units are generally settled with the issuance of shares with the exception of certain restricted stock
units awarded to internationally-based employees that are settled in cash. At August 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
outstanding restricted stock units included 5,658, 7,546 and 6,097 units, respectively, that will be settled in cash. The
vesting date fair value of restricted stock units that vested was $1.7 million and $1.6 million for the years ended
August 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
The table below summarizes the status of the Company�s performance stock units as of and for the year ended
August 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Weighted-
Average

Number of Grant-Date
Units Fair Value

Performance stock units at August 31, 2009 63,828 $ 41.48
Granted 45,608 32.81
Vested (18,183) 33.49
Forfeited (3,552) 32.81

Performance stock units at August 31, 2010 87,701 $ 38.98

Granted 27,932 55.45
Vested (17,008) 47.27
Forfeited � �

Performance stock units at August 31, 2011 98,625 $ 42.21
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In connection with the performance stock units, the performance goals are based upon a three-year average revenue
growth and a three-year average return on net assets over the performance period. The awards actually earned will
range from zero to two hundred percent of the targeted number of performance stock units and will be paid in shares
of common stock. Shares earned will be distributed upon vesting on the first day of November following the end of
the three-year performance period. The Company is accruing compensation expense based on the estimated number of
shares expected to be issued utilizing the most current information available to the Company at the date of the
financial statements. If defined performance goals are not met, no compensation cost will be recognized and any
previously recognized compensation expense will be reversed. Performance stock units that vested in fiscal 2011 and
2010 represented 13,395 and 24,964 actual shares of common stock issued. The vesting date fair value of performance
stock units that vested was $0.6 million and $0.8 million for the years ended August 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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As of August 31, 2011, there was $4.2 million pre-tax of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested
share-based compensation arrangements which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
1.8 years.
The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009:

For the years ended August 31,
$ in thousands 2011 2010 2009
Share-based compensation expense included in cost of operating
revenues $ 157 $ 123 $ 145

Research and development 120 60 131
Sales and marketing 574 360 437
General and administrative 2,623 1,663 1,427

Share-based compensation expense included in operating expenses 3,317 2,083 1,995

Total share-based compensation expense 3,474 2,206 2,140
Tax benefit (1,317) (836) (811)

Share-based compensation expense, net of tax $ 2,157 $ 1,370 $ 1,329

Q. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth
$ in thousands, except per share amounts Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Year ended August 31, 2011
Operating revenues $ 89,166 $ 120,168 $ 153,446 $ 116,110
Cost of operating revenues 64,943 86,159 111,947 86,056
Earnings before income taxes 6,577 17,001 23,159 9,777
Net earnings 4,286 11,325 15,289 5,902
Diluted net earnings per share1 $ 0.34 $ 0.89 $ 1.20 $ 0.46
Market price (NYSE)
High $ 66.48 $ 79.56 $ 85.87 $ 73.03
Low $ 37.22 $ 58.00 $ 61.85 $ 47.68

Year ended August 31, 2010
Operating revenues $ 85,970 $ 85,196 $ 100,073 $ 87,201
Cost of operating revenues 60,166 63,067 74,818 61,489
Earnings (loss) before income taxes 10,928 6,556 9,636 9,662
Net earnings 6,677 5,978 6,248 5,959
Diluted net earnings per share1 $ 0.53 $ 0.48 $ 0.49 $ 0.48
Market price (NYSE)
High $ 45.08 $ 47.45 $ 43.92 $ 38.19
Low $ 31.20 $ 35.02 $ 33.00 $ 30.80

1 The quarterly diluted net earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted average shares outstanding
assuming dilution for the quarter. There may be rounding differences between the sum of the quarterly diluted net
earnings per share amounts and the year-to-date diluted net earnings per share.
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ITEM 9 � Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
NONE
ITEM 9A � Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and
with the participation of the Company�s management, including the Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company�s disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 (e) and 15d-15(e) and internal control over financial reporting,
as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Based upon that evaluation, the Company�s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures are
effective in enabling the Company to record, process, summarize and report information required to be included in the
Company�s periodic SEC filings within the required time period.
Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the
Company. The Company�s internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company�s
management and board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.
Management has assessed the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of August 31,
2011, based on the criteria for effective internal control described in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on its assessment, management
concluded that the Company�s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of August 31, 2011.
The Audit Committee has engaged KPMG LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the
consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, to attest to and report on
management�s evaluation of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting. The report of KPMG LLP is
included herein.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Lindsay Corporation:
We have audited Lindsay Corporation�s internal control over financial reporting as of August 31, 2011, based on
criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company�s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying management�s report on internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company�s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit
also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company�s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
In our opinion, Lindsay Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of August 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Lindsay Corporation and subsidiaries as of August 31, 2011 and 2010, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders� equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended August 31, 2011, and our report dated October 27, 2011 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.
/s/ KPMG LLP
Omaha, Nebraska
October 27, 2011
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in the Company�s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter
ended August 31, 2011, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company�s
internal control over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B � Other Information
None.
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PART III
ITEM 10 � Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
The Company will file with the Securities and Exchange Commission a definitive Proxy Statement for its 2012
Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the �Proxy Statement�) not later than 120 days after the close of its fiscal year ended
August 31, 2011. Information about the Board of Directors required by Items 401 and 407 of Regulation S-K is
incorporated by reference to the discussion responsive thereto under the captions �Board of Directors and Committees�
and �Corporate Governance� in the Proxy Statement.
The executive officers and significant employees of the Company, their ages, positions and past five years experience
are set forth below. All executive officers of the Company are appointed by the Board of Directors annually and have
employment agreements. There are no family relationships between any director or executive officer. There are no
arrangements or understandings between any executive officer and any other person pursuant to which they were
selected as an officer.

Age Position
Richard W. Parod 58 President and Chief Executive Officer
James C. Raabe 51 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Steven S. Cotariu 53 President � Infrastructure Business
David B. Downing 56 President � International Operations
Barry A. Ruffalo 41 President � Irrigation Business
Douglas A. Taylor* 48 President � Technology Business
Eric R. Arneson* 37 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Dan G. Keller* 52 Vice President � Human Resources
Mark A. Roth* 36 Vice President � Corporate Development and Treasurer
Lori L. Zarkowski* 36 Chief Accounting Officer

* The employee is not an executive officer of the Registrant.
Mr. Richard W. Parod is President and Chief Executive Officer (�CEO�) of the Company, and has held such positions
since April 2000. Prior to that time and since 1997, Mr. Parod was Vice President and General Manager of the
Irrigation Division of The Toro Company. Mr. Parod was employed by James Hardie Irrigation from 1993 through
1997, becoming President in 1994. Mr. Parod has been a Director since April 2000, when he began his employment
with the Company.
Mr. James C. Raabe is Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, and has held such positions since
June 2011. Prior to joining Lindsay and since April 1999, he served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of Select Comfort Corporation. From September 1997 to April 1999, Mr. Raabe served as the Controller for
Select Comfort Corporation. From May 1992 to September 1997, he served as Vice President � Finance of ValueRx,
Inc., a pharmacy benefit management provider. Mr. Raabe held various positions with KPMG LLP from August 1982
to May 1992.
Mr. Steven S. Cotariu is President � Infrastructure Business of the Company and has held that position since
September 2010 when he joined the Company. Prior to joining Lindsay and since October 2002, Mr. Cotariu held a
variety of positions of increasing responsibility with Pentair, Inc., most recently as Vice President, Marketing for
Pentair Technical Products. Previously, Mr. Cotariu held marketing and business development positions with Textron,
Inc. and was a consultant with McKinsey & Company.
Mr. David B. Downing is President � International Operations of the Company and has held such position since
March 2008. Between March 2009 and June 2011, Mr. Downing served as both Chief Financial Officer and President �
International Operations of the Company. Previously he was Senior Vice President-Finance, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary of the Company and held such positions from August 2004, when he joined the Company, to
March 2008. Prior to August 2004, Mr. Downing served as the President of FPM L.L.C., a heat-treating company
based in Elk Grove Village, Illinois, after joining that company in January 2001 as Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer. Previously, Mr. Downing served as Vice President and Controller for Thermo-King, which manufactured
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Mr. Barry A. Ruffalo is President � Irrigation Business of the Company and has held such position since March 2007,
when he joined the Company. Prior to joining Lindsay and since February 2007, Mr. Ruffalo was most recently a
Director of North American Operations for Joy Global Inc. Prior to that time and since 1996, Mr. Ruffalo held various
positions of increasing responsibility with Case New Holland; the last five years were spent in Operations
Management within the Tractor and the Hay and Forage divisions for both the Case IH and New Holland brands.
Mr. Douglas A. Taylor is President � Technology Business of the Company and has held such position since July 2011.
Mr. Taylor joined the Company in May 2005 as the Chief Information Officer and was promoted to Vice President
and Chief Information Officer in October 2006, a position he held until appointment to his current position. From
2004 through early 2005, Mr. Taylor was a Technology Consultant. Prior to that time and since 1999, Mr. Taylor held
several positions with ConAgra Foods, most recently as the Vice President of Process and Systems Integration, Vice
President of Financial Systems, and Director of Information Systems.
Mr. Eric R. Arneson is Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of the Company and has held such positions
since April 2008, when he joined the Company. Prior to that time and since January 1999, Mr. Arneson practiced law
with the law firm of Kutak Rock LLP, and was most recently a partner of the firm.
Mr. Dan G. Keller is Vice President � Human Resources of the Company and has held such position since April 2008,
when he joined the Company. Prior to that time and since December 2006, Mr. Keller was a Director of Human
Resources for Johnson & Johnson. Previously, Mr. Keller was with Pfizer Inc., the last seven years as a Director of
Human Resources.
Mr. Mark A. Roth is Vice President � Corporate Development and Treasurer of the Company. Mr. Roth joined Lindsay
in 2004, as Director of Corporate Development and was promoted to Vice President � Corporate Development in
March 2007, adding Treasurer to his role in April 2008. From March 2001 through 2004 when he joined the
Company, Mr. Roth was an Associate with McCarthy Group, Inc., a Midwest-based investment bank and private
equity fund. From January 1998 through February 2001, Mr. Roth was a Senior Credit Analyst at US Bancorp.
Ms. Lori L. Zarkowski is Chief Accounting Officer of the Company, and has held such position since August 2011.
Ms. Zarkowski joined Lindsay in June 2007 as Corporate Reporting Manager and was promoted to Corporate
Controller in April 2008. Prior to joining the Company and since 1997, Ms. Zarkowski was most recently an Audit
Senior Manager with Deloitte & Touche LLP.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance - Item 405 of Regulation S-K calls for disclosure of any
known late filing or failure by an insider to file a report required by Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act. The
information required by Item 405 is incorporated by reference to the discussion responsive thereto under the caption
�Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance� in the Proxy Statement.
Code of Ethics � Item 406 of Regulation S-K calls for disclosure of whether the Company has adopted a code of
ethics applicable to the principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or
controller, or persons performing similar functions. The Company has adopted a code of ethics applicable to the
Company�s principal executive officer and senior financial officers known as the Code of Ethical Conduct (Principal
Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers). The Code of Ethical Conduct (Principal Executive Officer and
Senior Financial Officers) is available on the Company�s website. In the event that the Company amends or waives any
of the provisions of the Code of Ethical Conduct applicable to the principal executive officer and senior financial
officers, the Company intends to disclose the same on the Company�s website at www.lindsay.com. No waivers were
provided for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2011.
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ITEM 11 � Executive Compensation
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the discussion responsive thereto under the
captions �Executive Compensation�, �Compensation Discussion and Analysis�, �Pension Benefits�, �Nonqualified Deferred
Compensation�, �Report of the Compensation Committee on Executive Compensation�, �Compensation of Directors� and
�Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation� in the Proxy Statement.
ITEM 12 � Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by this Item relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is
incorporated by reference to the discussion responsive thereto under the caption �Voting Securities and Beneficial
Ownership Thereof by Principal Stockholders, Directors and Officers� in the Proxy Statement.
Equity Compensation Plan Information � The following equity compensation plan information summarizes plans and
securities approved by security holders as of August 31, 2011 (there were no equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders as of August 31, 2011):

(c)
(a) (b) Number of securities

Number of
securities Weighted-average remaining
to be issued

upon
exercise price

of
available for future

issuance

exercise of outstanding
under equity
compensation

outstanding
options,

options,
warrants,

plans (excluding
securities

PLAN CATEGORY
warrants, and

rights and rights
reflected in column

(a))
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders (1) (2) 301,368 $ 23.17 357,425

Total 301,368 $ 23.17 357,425

(1) Plans approved by shareholders include the Company�s 2001, 2006 and 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plans. While
certain share based awards remain outstanding under the Company�s 2001 and 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plans,
no future equity compensation awards may be granted under such plans.

(2) Column (a) includes (i) 98,625 shares that could be issued under performance stock units (�PSU�) outstanding at
August 31, 2011, and (ii) 66,168 shares that could be issued under restricted stock units (�RSU�) outstanding at
August 31, 2011. The PSUs are earned and Common Stock issued if certain predetermined performance criteria
are met. Actual shares issued may be equal to, less than or greater than (but not more than 200% of) the number
of outstanding PSUs included in column (a), depending on actual performance. The RSUs vest and are payable in
Common Stock after the expiration of the time periods set forth in the related agreements. Column (b) does not
take these PSU and RSU awards into account because they do not have an exercise price.

ITEM 13 � Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the discussion responsive thereto under the
captions �Corporate Governance� and �Corporate Governance � Related Party Transactions� in the Proxy Statement.
ITEM 14 � Principal Accounting Fees and Services
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the discussion responsive thereto under the
caption �Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm� in the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
ITEM 15 � Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
a(1) Financial Statements
The following financial statements of Lindsay Corporation and Subsidiaries are included in Part II Item 8.

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 25

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years
ended August 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 26

Consolidated Balance Sheets at
August 31, 2011 and 2010 27

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders� Equity and Comprehensive Income
for the years ended August 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 28

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years
ended August 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 29

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 30-52

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts �
Years ended August 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 59
Financial statements and schedules other than those listed are omitted for the reason that they are not required, are not
applicable or that equivalent information has been included in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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a(2) Exhibit
Lindsay Corporation and Subsidiaries

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years ended August 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Additions
Balance at Charges to Charged to Balance at
beginning costs and other end of

(in thousands) of period expenses accounts Deductions period
Year ended August 31, 2011:
Deducted in the balance sheet from
the assets to which they apply:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
(a) 2,244 388 � 292 2,340
Allowance for inventory
obsolescence (b) 2,045 426 (2) 302 2,167
Year ended August 31, 2010:
Deducted in the balance sheet from
the assets to which they apply:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
(a) 1,864 732 4 356 2,244
Allowance for inventory
obsolescence (b) 1,643 984 60 642 2,045
Year ended August 31, 2009:
Deducted in the balance sheet from
the assets to which they apply:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
(a) 1,457 554 � 147 1,864
Allowance for inventory
obsolescence (b) 1,409 492 � 258 1,643

(a) Deductions consist of uncollectible items written off, less recoveries of items previously written off.

(b) Deductions consist of obsolete items sold or scrapped.
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a(3) EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 14, 2006.

3.2 Restated By-Laws of the Company, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company�s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 6, 2007.

4.1 Specimen Form of Common Stock Certificate incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) to the
Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2006.

10.1 Lindsay Corporation 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan and forms of award agreements,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended May 31, 2010.

10.2 Lindsay Manufacturing Co. 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan and forms of award agreements,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended August 31, 2007.

10.3 Lindsay Manufacturing Co. 2001 Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(i) of the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended August 31, 2001.

10.4 Amendment to Lindsay Manufacturing Co. 2001 Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive
Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(k) to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005.

10.5 Lindsay Corporation Management Incentive Umbrella Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended February 28,
2009.

10.6** Lindsay Corporation Management Incentive Plan (MIP), 2011 Plan Year, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended November 30, 2010.

10.7 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and its Officers and Directors, ,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2008.

10.8 Employment Agreement between the Company and Richard W. Parod effective March 8, 2000,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to the Company�s Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended May 31, 2000.

10.9 First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated May 2, 2003, between the Company and
Richard W. Parod, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 (a) of Amendment No. 1 to the
Company�s Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended May 31, 2003.
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10.10 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated December 22, 2004, between the
Company and Richard W. Parod, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to the Company�s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 27, 2004.

10.11 Third Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated March 20, 2007, between the Company and
Richard W. Parod, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on March 22, 2007.
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.12 Fourth Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated December 22, 2008, between the Company
and Richard W. Parod, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company�s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on January 30, 2009.

10.13 Fifth Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated January 26, 2009, between the Company and
Richard W. Parod, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on January 30, 2009.

10.14 Restated Sixth Amendment, effective February 25, 2010, by and between the Company and
Richard W. Parod, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company�s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended February 28, 2010.

10.15 Seventh Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated January 31, 2011, between the Company
and Richard W. Parod, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on February 3, 2011.

10.16 Employment Agreement, dated May 5, 2011, between the Company and James Raabe,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
May 10, 2011.

10.17 Employment Agreement dated February 19, 2009, by and between the Company and David B.
Downing, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on February 25, 2009.

10.18 Employment Agreement, dated February 19, 2009, by and between the Company and Barry A.
Ruffalo, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on February 25, 2009.

10.19 Employment Agreement, dated February 19, 2009, by and between the Company and Timothy J.
Paymal, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on February 25, 2009.

10.20 Employment Agreement, dated August 13, 2010, by and between the Company and Steve
Cotariu, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 of the Company�s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2010.

10.21 Term Note, dated June 1, 2006, by and between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
June 2, 2006.

10.22 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated June 1, 2006, by and between the Company and
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company�s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended on February 28, 2010.

10.23
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Amended and Restated ISDA Confirmation dated May 8, 2006, by and between the Company
and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company�s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2006.

10.24 ISDA Master Agreement, dated May 5, 2006, by and between the Company and Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2006.

10.25 Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement, dated May 5, 2006, by and between the Company and
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company�s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2006.

10.26 Term Note, dated December 27, 2006, by Snoline S.pA. (successor in interest to Lindsay Italia,
S.r.l.) in favor of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 29, 2006.
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.27 Credit Agreement, dated December 27, 2006, by and between Snoline S.pA. (successor in interest
to Lindsay Italia, S.r.l.) and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 29, 2006.

10.28 Restated First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated January 23, 2010, by and between Snoline
S.p.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company�s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended February 28, 2010.

10.29 First Bank Guarantee, dated December 27, 2006, by the Company in favor of Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on December 29, 2006.

10.30 Revolving Credit Note, dated January 24, 2008, by and between the Company and Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Current Report on Form
8-K filed on January 30, 2008.

10.31 Revolving Credit Agreement, dated January 24, 2008, by and between the Company and Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on January 30, 2008.

10.32 First Amendment to Revolving Credit Agreement, dated January 23, 2010, by and between the
Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 26, 2010.

10.33 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated January 23, 2011, by and between the Company
and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on January 26, 2011.

10.34 Lindsay Corporation Policy on Payment of Directors Fees and Expenses, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended August 31, 2008.

21* Subsidiaries of the Company

23* Consent of KPMG LLP

24* The Power of Attorney authorizing Richard W. Parod to sign the Annual Report on Form 10-K
for fiscal 2011 on behalf of non-management directors.

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
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32* Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

* - filed herein

** - certain confidential portions of this Exhibit were omitted by means of redacting a portion of the text. This
Exhibit has been filed separately with the Secretary of the Commission with the redacted text pursuant to the
Company�s application requesting confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2 of the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on this 27th day of October,
2011.

LINDSAY CORPORATION

By: /s/ JAMES C. RAABE

Name: James C. Raabe
Title: Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on this 27th day of October, 2011.

/s/ Richard W. Parod

Richard W. Parod

Director, President and Chief Executive
Officer 
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ James C. Raabe

James C. Raabe

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

/s/ Michael N. Christodolou (1)

Michael N. Christodolou

Chairman of the Board of Directors 

/s/ Howard G. Buffett (1)

Howard G. Buffett

Director 

/s/ W. Thomas Jagodinski (1)

W. Thomas Jagodinski

Director 

/s/ J. David McIntosh (1)

J. David McIntosh

Director 

/s/ Michael C. Nahl (1)

Michael C. Nahl

Director 

/s/ Michael D.Walter (1)

Michael D. Walter

Director 

/s/ William f. welsh ii (1)

William F. Welsh II

Director 
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(1) By: /s/ Richard W. Parod

Richard W. Parod, Attorney-In-Fact
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